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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
FTEx FHT g
Turnover BER
Jewellery retail HETE 16,723,183 16,932,576 -1%
Other businesses HihxH 2,346,074 2,313,382 +1%
19,069,257 19,245,958 -1%
Profit attributable to equity holders ARrlERFAA
of the Company* FEA s F) * 1,130,320 1,082,324 +4%
Basic earnings per share BREKRERN 167.0 cents fli  159.9 cents fll +4%
Dividend per share FRRE
— Interim —- R H 12.0 cents 12.0 cents 1l
~ Final - R 36.0 cents fli  49.0 cents {ll
- Special final - R RIREA 14.0 cents 1 -
Total dividend per share for the year 2FEERKREEHE 62.0 centsfli  61.0 cents
Dividend payout ratio B E 37% 38%
Equity attributable to equity holders RARERFEA
of the Company ol 9,077,915 8,646,733 +5%
Equity per share sHi $13.4 T $12.8 7T +5%
* Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year ended * Bz -—RFf+tZRA=+—81
31 December 2015 included a gain of HK$246 million on the disposal of FE-ARAERREABRGERNBE
shares in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. HEBBRIREEMER AR RN

Turngver
Year EEHR
F15
2015 2,346 19,069
2014 2,313 19,246
2013 5,199 25,142
2012 3,399 18,260
2011 4,513 17,158
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

Thanks to a gain of HK$246 million resulting from the disposal of
part of our long-term holding of stocks in Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, the Group's profit for 2015 stood at HK$ 1,130 million
despite a drop of 1% in total turnover to HK$19,069 million.

The price of gold has been on a downward trend, but gold is no longer
sought by the populace after in the manner seen in the years before.
The economy in China has slowed down. Hong Kong is beset with a
malaise that affects all social strata in different ways. If 2015 was a
tough year for the retail sector, 2016 could be harder still.

| thank our shareholders, our customers and our staff for their loyalty
and support. Together we will work our way through these trying times.

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 March 2016
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling, aged 92, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company, the Honorary Chairman of the Group and a director of a
number of subsidiaries within the Group. He is the elder brother of
Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim. As a founder of the Group, Mr. CHOW served
as the Group General Manager from 1973 to 1986 and the Group
Chairman from 1973 to 1990. He was elected the Honorary Chairman
upon retiring as Chairman in 1990. He is well experienced in corporate
management.

Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim, BBS, MBE, JP, DSSc (Hon), aged 89, is a Non-
executive Director of the Company and a director of a number of
subsidiaries within the Group. He is the younger brother of Mr. CHOW
Kwen Ling and the father of Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, the
Chairman and Group General Manager. As a founder of the Group,
Dr. CHOW served as the Group General Manager from 1986 to 1997
and the Group Chairman from 1990 to 2013. He was re-designated
from an Executive Director to a Non-executive Director on 2 June 2015.
He has been in the jewellery business for over 60 years. Dr. CHOW
was awarded Doctor of Social Science, Honoris Causa by The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1998 and is an Honorary Professor of the
Fudan University and a member of the Board of the Journal of Shunde
Polytechnic. He is also an Honorary Citizen of the cities of Guangzhou,
Foshan, Changle, Lanzhou and Dunhuang, PRC.

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun, MB, BS, DMRT, aged 82, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He has been with the Group for over 40 years. Dr. CHAN
is a medical doctor in private practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, BBS, MBE, JP, aged 69, is an
Executive Director of the Company, the Chairman of the Board, the
Group General Manager and a director of a number of subsidiaries
within the Group. He is the son of Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim. Mr. CHOW has
been with the Group for over 30 years, having been the Group General
Manager and the Chairman since 1998 and 2013 respectively. He is the
Deputy Chairman of the Council of the City University of Hong Kong,
where he is also the Vice Chairman of the Board of Management of the
Community College of City University. Mr. CHOW is appointed by the
Home Affairs Bureau's to its Advisory Committee on Arts Development
as well as the Performing Arts Committee under the Board of West
Kowloon Cultural District Authority. He was made an Honorary Fellow
of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts; and he serves as the
Chairman of Musica Viva Limited and a Director of the Board of The
Hong Kong International Film Festival Society Limited, both companies
being not-for-profit organizations. He is a member of the Shunde
People’s Political Consultative Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, aged 59, is an Executive Director of
the Company. He is a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company and a director of a number of subsidiaries within the Group.
He has joined the Group for over 25 years. Dr. CHOW is the elder
brother of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and the cousin of Mr. Vincent
CHOW Wing Shing. For community services in Hong Kong, Dr. CHOW
is a panel member of the Public Affairs Forum under the Home Affairs
Bureau, HKSAR. He is also an expert member of the “Managing World
Cities” Programme of the Faculty of Social Sciences, University of Hong
Kong. He is a former member of the Central Policy Unit of the Hong
Kong Government (2009-2011) and a former council member of The
Better Hong Kong Foundation (2007-2015). Dr. CHOW also served in
the Central and Western District Fight Crime Committee (2009-2011).
He is an honorary member of the Hong Kong Fire Services Officers’
Mess and the founding President of the Central and Western District
Fire Safety Ambassador Honorary Presidents’ Association of the Hong
Kong Fire Services Department. Dr. CHOW has been a voting member
of the Po Leung Kuk Advisory Board since 1997. Dr. CHOW is also a
member of the Bauhinia Foundation Research Centre and the Hong
Kong Strategy.

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 62, was an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Secretary of the Company until September 2004. He
was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company on 28
September 2004. Mr. TING is a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is an independent non-
executive director of seven other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd., Tongda Group Holdings Limited,
New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited, Computer And Technologies
Holdings Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited, Dongyue Group
Limited and China SCE Property Holdings Limited. He is a member of the
9th, 10th and 11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Fujian. Mr. TING is an accountant in public practice and has more than
30 years of experience in this field. Currently, he is the Managing
Partner of Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam, GBS, OBE, JP, LL.B (Lond.) (Hons), aged 75, is
a Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 26 June 1995 and re-designated as a
Non-executive Director in September 2004. Mr. CHUNG is a solicitor
in practice. Apart from being a China-appointed Attesting Officer
and a Hong Kong Notary Public, he also holds key posts in various
organizations. He is an independent non-executive director of two other
listed companies in Hong Kong, namely S E A Holdings Limited and
Datronix Holdings Limited.

Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, aged 58, is an Executive Director of
the Company, the Group Deputy General Manager and a director of a
number of subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. CHOW has been with the
Group since 1984 (except 1988 to 1992) and has become the Group
Deputy General Manager since 1995. Mr. CHOW is the younger brother
of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and the cousin of Mr. Vincent CHOW
Wing Shing. He has experience in real estate in Canada. Mr. CHOW's
key responsibilities include the marketing and staff learning and
development of the Group’s jewellery business in Greater China. He is
a member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Vice-chairman of the
Quality Tourism Services Association, a Vice-chairman of the Hong Kong
Retail Management Association, the Chairman of the Jewellery Industry
Training Advisory Committee and a member of Steering Committee on
Qualifications Framework Fund of the Education Bureau, an Executive
Committee member of the Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China
Limited, an Executive Committee member of the Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association Ltd., and a member of the Guangzhou
Municipal Tianhe District People’s Political Consultative Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Ka Lun, FCCA, aged 60, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, and the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 28 September 2004. Mr. LEE is an accountant by
profession and has over 25 years of experience in banking and auditing.
He was the Regional Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc and
Regional Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations
in Asia for over 15 years and has extensive experience in corporate
banking, private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments and
general management. He is also a responsible officer approved by the
Securities and Futures Commission and serves as an independent non-
executive director of four other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely
Yuexiu Property Company Limited, REXLot Holdings Limited, Chong
Hing Bank Limited (“Chong Hing”) and Medicskin Holdings Limited.
Mr. LEE is also a director of Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited, a holding
company of Chong Hing.

Dr. LO King Man, FRSA, FHKU, UFHKPU, FHKAPA, DocHKAPA, JP,
MBE, SBS, BBS, aged 78, is an Independent Non-executive Director,
a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28 September
2004. Following a career in higher education management, Dr. LO held
appointments as Director of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing
Arts during 1993 to 2004 and as Principal of the Canton International
Summer Music Academy established by the Guangdong Government
during 2004 to 2009. His public service included vice-chairmanship of
the former Urban Council and membership of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Basic Law Consultative Committee, Examination
Authority, Broadcasting Authority, Vocational Training Council and Arts
Development Council. He has served on governing boards of numerous
educational and cultural organizations. Dr. LO is a member of various
committees of the University of Hong Kong (“HKU") Council and a
council member of the Centennial College, an affiliate to HKU. Dr. LO is
also the Director-general of Musica Viva Limited. He is an independent
non-executive director of another listed company in Hong Kong - Sing
Lee Software (Group) Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung, OBE, JP, aged 70, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 17 December 2012. Mr. LAU is a qualified
electrical engineer, and a member of The Institution of Engineering
and Technology, United Kingdom, and with a postgraduate degree of
Master of Science from the University of Surrey, England. He has more
than 30 years of management and marketing experience, particularly in
the textile and apparel field. Mr. LAU is the managing director of The
Polyfabrics (Hong Kong) Limited. He was appointed as a member to
vice-chairman of the Urban Council from 1978 to 1995. Mr. LAU was
also appointed as a member of various committees, boards, and panels,
namely the Textiles Advisory Board, the Trade and Industry Advisory
Board, the Administrative Appeals Board, the Air Transport Licensing
Authority, the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning), the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance), the Broadcasting Authority, etc. He also
served as a Council Member of the University of Hong Kong from 1985
to 1997. Mr. LAU is active in several charitable organizations and in
Chiu Chow community associations.

Mr. Theodore TAM Shing Chi, CPA (Aust.), CPA, MBA, aged 57, is
the Company Secretary of the Company and the Group's Chief Financial
Officer. Mr. TAM joined the Group in 2009 and has over 30 years of
experience in finance, accounting and management. Mr. TAM is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
the CPA Australia. He holds a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the Melbourne University, Australia. Mr. TAM's experiences
covered a variety of industries including auditing, business advisory
services with one of the Big Four accounting firms in Hong Kong as well
as the Regional Chief Financial Officer of one of the top three marketing
communication services companies in Asia Pacific.

Ms. Susan MAK Wei Yee, FCCA, CPA, aged 59, is the General
Manager of Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited. Ms. MAK joined the
Group in 2001 and has over 35 years of experience in accounting,
banking and finance. Ms. MAK is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Mr. LAU Hak Bun, aged 63, is the Group’s General Manager — Retail
Operations (Greater China). Mr. LAU has been with the Group for over
40 years. He is well-experienced in sales management. Apart from
managing the retail and corporate gift operations in Hong Kong and
Macau, Mr. LAU is also responsible for the development of operational
strategies in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Macau. He also
serves as the Vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths'’
Association Ltd. and the Chairman of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious
Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Sandra SHEK Tsang, aged 46, is the Group's Brand Director
for “Chow Sang Sang”. Ms. SHEK is responsible for overseeing the
development of the branding, product development and marketing.
Prior to joining the Group in 2013, she was the General Manager of
various international jewellery and accessories brands. Ms. SHEK has
over 20 years of sales operation and marketing experience in China.

Ms. Carol WONG May Chun, aged 52, is the Group's Brand Director
for "Emphasis Jewellery”. Ms. WONG joined the Group in 2004
and is responsible for Emphasis Jewellery’s total branding, including
product development, marketing, as well as channel development and
management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. WONG held key posts in
various internationally-renowned fashion and accessories brands, and
has extensive experience in brand management and marketing, with
major focus on developing Asia Pacific markets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

Although there was no reduction in the number of visits to Hong Kong
by mainlanders as compared to the prior year, spending by the visitors
remained decidedly low-key throughout 2015.

In the second half, the spending power of the visitors was weakened
by both the slowing down of the economy in China and the downward
slide of the Renminbi.

Softness in the property sector, together with the gyrations of the stock
markets in both Hong Kong and China intensified the chill.

All the ebullience in the Hong Kong stock market during the first half
evaporated as the index fell off its peak in April to end the year some
6,600 points lower. Poor market sentiments in the mainland bourses
probably added fuel to the volatility in Hong Kong.

The Group's turnover for the year 2015 stood at HK$19,069 million,
slipping by HK$177 million or 1% from the prior year. The disposal
of part of the long-term holding of shares in Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited resulted in a gain of HK$246 million. Including
this amount, the Group's overall profit attributable to equity holders
amounted to HK$1,130 million, increasing 4% year on year.

Jewellery Retail

Operating profit retreated 20% from the previous year to HK$1,007
million. Jewellery retail accounted for 88% of the Group's turnover.

Hong Kong and Macau
Sales registered a drop of 10%. Same store sales growth (“SSSG") was
-11%.

Although the total weight of gold sold maintained its level, turnover
decreased by 8% because of the fall in gold price. Slower sales in
jewellery was the other contributing factor to the drop in turnover.

During the year, two shops, one Chow Sang Sang and one Emphasis
Jewellery, were closed. The watch section of two shops, in Tsuen Wan
and Tuen Mun respectively, were upgraded to separate shops in the
same malls.

Macau was still suffering from a dearth of visitors. Shops located in the
shopping arcades fared worse than the main street shop.

Lease renewals during the year resulted in some small savings but total
rental expenditure went up by 12%.

Capital expenditure amounted to HK$59 million, most of which was for
refitting of shops.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Jewellery Retail (continued)

Mainland China
Total turnover increased by 11% to HK$7,689 million. SSSG was +6%.

Contribution to gross profit was 49% from gold and 51% from other
than gold. Sales through the internet went up by 77%.

At year-end there was a total of 343 shops located in 103 cities. New
shops numbered 40, and there were 19 closings.

Capital expenditure, mostly spent on the fitting out of the new shops
and the refitting of 56 existing shops, amounted to RMB83 million.

Taiwan

During the year, five shops were redecorated and a new one was
opened. There was no significant change in the results from the prior
year.

Wholesale of Precious Metals

Turnover increased by 6% to HK$2,244 million. Operating profit
increased by 4%.

Securities and Futures Broking

Despite an increase of 52% in daily market turnover, our increase
was a more modest 38%. In the second half, our clients, mostly retail
customers, turned very cautious because of the roller-coaster behaviour
of the market. Their participation in initial public offering (“IPO")
activities was so low our income therefrom dropped by a third.

During the year, our system replacement project was completed.
In December, we became a China Connect Exchange and Clearing
Participant.

Investments

Properties

The Group holds various properties that are being used for offices, shops
and factories. Rental income from investment properties amounted to
HK$11 million, less than 1% of the Group's turnover.

Shares in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEC")

At 1 January 2015, the Group had 4,953,500 shares of HKEC, received
as distribution from the reorganization of the then exchanges in year
2000. During the year, 891,700 shares were sold at a gain of HK$246
million in order to generate working capital. As at 31 December 2015,
the Group held 4,061,800 shares of HKEC and the unrealized gain on
the holding amounted to HK$806 million (2014: 4,953,500 shares with
unrealized gain of HK$850 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance

Financial Position and Liquidity

The Group generates strong recurring cashflow from its jewellery
business and continues to enjoy a solid cash position. As at 31
December 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$1,621
million (2014: HK$1,009 million). Cash is mostly held in Renminbi or
Hong Kong dollar and deposited in leading banks with maturity dates
falling within one year.

The Group was well supported by over HK$5,629 million in banking
facilities including bank borrowings and bullion loans, out of which
HK$915 million are committed facilities. As at 31 December 2015, total
unutilized banking facilities was HK$3,831 million (2014: HK$3,813
million).

As at 31 December 2015, total bank borrowings and bullion loans
with respect to its jewellery business amounted to HK$945 million
and HK$795 million respectively, most of which were unsecured in
accordance with Group policy. All the loans are repayable within
three years. Bank borrowing with respect to its securities business
amounted to HK$16 million, which was arranged to provide financing
to subscribers of IPOs. The gearing ratio was 19%, based on total bank
borrowings (excluding IPO financing) and bullion loans of HK$1,740
million as a percentage of total equity of HK$9,078 million. The current
ratio of the Group was 4.2.

The Group manages risk of credit cost and availability by several
means: cultivating relationship with a large number of lending banks;
diversifying the funding sources by engaging a number of local and
overseas banks; putting some loans on a term basis; and fixing interest
costs on loans as appropriate. The Group had 16% of its bank loans
at fixed rates as at 31 December 2015, decreased from 23% as at 31
December 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, outstanding derivatives on the books were
mainly bullion contracts for hedging the bullion price exposure. The
management monitors the hedging policy closely and the hedging level
of the Group is approximately 40% of the total gold inventories.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance (continued)

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses are mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US dollar. As such, the
risk is easily manageable and slight. Simultaneously, the Group maintains
an appropriate level of foreign currency borrowings for natural hedge
to minimize the foreign exchange exposure. As at 31 December 2015,
the borrowings denominated in New Taiwan dollar amounted NT$126
million.

Charge on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, certain items of properties of the Group with
a net carrying value of HK$221 million (2014: HK$216 million), and
listed equity investments of HK$476 million (2014: HK$525 million)
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
of the Company.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Human Resources

The Group maintains its long-established performance-based
remuneration policies. Training has been provided to new and existing
staff at a pace commensurate with the expansion of the networks in all
territories.

At year-end, the total number of employees was 8,410, with 6,476
(77%) on the mainland.

To date, no option has been granted under the Company’s share option
scheme. Details of the scheme can be found in note 33 to the financial
statements.

Outlook

The year 2016 will be a challenging one, more so in Hong Kong and
Macau than in Mainland China.

In Hong Kong, although we have no immediate plans to close any
shops, any shop-lease renewal will be scrutinized very carefully to see if
the renewal made strategic and economic sense.

In China, we will continue to open new stores, at the pace of about
40 per year. Although the economy has slowed down, consumers are
getting more and more sophisticated and we see opportunities for
growth.

Overall, our finance and inventory are both in good health; we are
continuing our efforts to improve our product development.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are active in the field of the manufacture and retail of
jewellery, wholesale of precious metals, and securities and futures
broking. Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 43 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 36 to 125.

An interim dividend of HK12 cents per ordinary share was paid on 23
September 2015. The Directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK36 cents per ordinary share and a special final dividend
of HK14 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members on 16 June 2016.

Business Review

A fair review and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided in
the Chairman’s Message on page 3 and the Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 10 to 13 of this annual report. No important
event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the financial
year under review. Certain financial key performance indicators can be
found in the Financial Highlights on page 2.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
shown in note 40 to the financial statements.

An account of the Group's relationships with its key stakeholders and
discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
and compliance with relevant laws and regulations are included in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 23 to 33.

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements and reclassified as
appropriate, is set out on page 15 of this report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Five-year Financial Summary (continued)

Results

ES

Turnover
Jewellery retail
Other businesses

Operating profit
Share of profits of
associates, net

Profit before tax
Income tax

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the

Company

Non-controlling interests
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLFE

IERBERE(E)

Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests

EE  AERFERRRER

Total assets
Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests

BEE
BaE
IR A R

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET FET
16,723,183 16,932,576 19,942,531 14,861,040 12,645,000
2,346,074 2,313,382 5,199,909 3,399,192 4,513,286
19,069,257 19,245,958 25,142,440 18,260,232 17,158,286
1,367,603 1,360,090 1,510,159 1,217,488 1,417,785
454 2,211 1,828 4,179 1,983
1,368,057 1,362,301 1,511,987 1,221,667 1,419,768
(237,737) (276,907) (288,428) (232,853) (303,423)
1,130,320 1,085,394 1,223,559 988,814 1,116,345
1,130,320 1,082,324 1,218,461 984,845 1,097,983
- 3,070 5,098 3,969 18,362
1,130,320 1,085,394 1,223,559 988,814 1,116,345
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—8
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET FHET FET FET
12,011,365 12,242,409 11,341,983 10,425,555 9,679,107
(2,933,450) (3,595,676) (3,323,509) (3,342,482) (3,242,571)
- - (83,574) (76,104) (81,059)
9,077,915 8,646,733 7,934,900 7,006,969 6,355,477

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED G
AEESEBRBRAERRA

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
2015 4 ¥R



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$2,181,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of
the Group's properties are set out on pages 126 to 128 of this annual
report.

Share Capital

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorized or issued
share capital during the year.

Share Option Scheme

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in note
33 to the financial statements.

Emolument Policy

The long-established performance-based emolument policy for
the employees of the Group operates on the basis of rewarding
performance, with appropriate consideration on experience and
prevailing industry practices.

The Company determined the emoluments of the directors on the
basis of the comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities,
employment conditions, the Board's corporate goals and objectives,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 10 respectively to
the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2015, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted to HK$2,126,633,000, of
which HK$338,460,000 has been proposed as a final dividend and a
special final dividend for the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 62% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 26%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close associates
or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling

Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun*

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam

Mr. LEE Ka Lun*

Dr. LO King Man*

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung*

* Independent Non-executive Directors
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors (continued)

Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim was re-designated from Executive Director to Non-
executive Director on 2 June 2015.

Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling and Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2016 AGM") pursuant
to their appointment letters with the Company, and Mr. Winston
CHOW Waun Sing, Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel and Mr. Stephen LAU
Man Lung shall retire by rotation at the 2016 AGM pursuant to the
Company’s bye-laws. All the retiring Directors are eligible for re-election
at the 2016 AGM.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2016 AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management up to the
date of this report are set out on pages 4 to 9 of this annual report.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

Save as detailed in note 37 to the financial statements, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company’s subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.

Management Contracts

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or in existence during
the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and subject to the provisions of the
statutes, every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors in the issued
share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions:

EENkOzER

RZBE-—RF+-A=1+—H &E%
FHEGRHDE 352 A RAATRE LA
WAL KRB EHRTAERET
BHRHWRETA([RETA ) VAR
ARARBEHEIFIMARDA(HBR
FDRRz#s  RESFNARFHEM
BrE(EER(BH REHRIDEXVE)
ERITRAR ZESMT -

HE:

Number of shares held

BREA
Percentage of
the Company's
Personal Family Corporate Trustee issued share
interest interest interest interest Total capital
NG R )
Name of Directors ] BAERE ZBER ARER B AER At RABA
Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling AEL %L - - 53,909,932 - 53,909,932 7.96
Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim BEREL - - - 136,271,595 % 136,271,595 20.13
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun RABBE 1,320,000 - - - 1,320,000 0.20
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing KB4 - - - 136,271,595 % 136,271,595 20.13
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing EHKEE 19,711,680 70398 ¥ 56,244,316 - 76,026,394 11.23
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing BrkEE 28,681,104 52,800 % 14,244316% 32,616,000 % 75,594,220 11.17

Please refer to the explanatory notes in the section headed “Substantial
Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of those persons in the issued

share

capital of the Company as recorded in the register of interests

TERRREMATRERO REERD 2
B

i
K ERE (5B )% 336 1% -

—EF+ZA=1+—H BREGE
ARRBTRELZ

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO BnafaSnNEE AR BEITRAA
were as follows: TRERIT
Long positions: HA
Percentage of the
Number of Company's issued
Name Capacity shares held share capital
EERAR S BT
Z8 &% EREE [ NEE g
Everwin Company Limited Beneficial Owner 120,000,000 ¥ 17.73
EmfFAA
The Capital Group Companies, Inc. Interest of Controlled Corporations 87,856,035 12.98
REHI ARz s
Happy Inc. Beneficial Owner 66,000,000 9.75
EaBEaA
Speed Star Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner and Interest of 56,244,316 © 8.31
Controlled Corporation
EnfFA ARREGI ARz #Ew
Happy Family Limited Beneficial Owner 53,909,932 " 7.96
REFEFR LA EmfFAA
Schroders Plc Investment Manager 40,714,447 © 6.02
BEBEA
Notes: Bt -
(1) 53,909,932 shares in the Company were held by Happy Family Limited, (1 HheREERALD 7 ¥ B AKX RA
in which Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling had a 20% equity interest and his late 53,909,932 ki1 - AEL LEERZ
spouse had another 20% equity interest. NF120% 2 B A2 HEW@E(%DTT%

136,271,595 shares in the Company were held by a discretionary trust
of which Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim and Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing were
among the beneficiaries. The trustee of the trust was Cititrust (Cayman)
Limited, which held the interests in the Company through the following
companies:

Name of companies

RElEE

Everwin Company Limited
Golden Court Limited

Accordingly, Cititrust (Cayman) Limited was deemed to have interests in
the 136,271,595 shares. Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim, Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing
Shing and his spouse were deemed to have interests in the 136,271,595
shares in the Company.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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20

2)

BZRAISIN20% 2 IR AR A

—IBEEERFEART 136,271,595
D AERELREAKKETEAEFT
#F A e Cititrust (Cayman) Limited A& 1=

FEZEFEA  HEBTIAREEAAT
2 -

No. of shares held

FFRE A

120,000,000

16,271,595

B, - Cititrust (Cayman) Limited #48 A 7
5136,271,595 B Rt - AEREL -
E*ﬁii&ﬁ@aﬁmﬁm—%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ
136,271,595 R D % o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(3) 70,398 shares and 52,800 shares in the Company were held by the
respective spouse of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing.

42,000,000 shares in the Company were held by Speed Star Holdings
Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
and his spouse.

14,244,316 shares in the Company were held by Eimoling Company
Limited, in which Speed Star Holdings Limited and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing owned 44.5% of the equity interest respectively.

32,616,000 shares in the Company were held by CWS Holdings Limited,
a company beneficially owned by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Winston
CHOW Wun Sing was the founder and one of the beneficiaries. The trustee
of the trust was UBS TC (Jersey) Ltd. and, accordingly, it was deemed to
have interests in the 32,616,000 shares in the Company.

Accordingly, Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and his spouse were deemed
to have interests in the 56,314,714 shares and 75,955,996 shares in the
Company respectively. Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and his spouse were
deemed to have interests in the 46,913,116 shares and 75,541,420 shares
in the Company respectively.

(4)  The Capital Group Companies, Inc. through its subsidiaries, namely Capital
Guardian Trust Company, Capital International, Inc., Capital International
Limited, Capital International Sarl and Capital Research and Management
Company held 4,884,300 shares, 4,179,435 shares, 2,366,000 shares,
14,316,000 shares and 62,110,300 shares in the Company respectively,
and was accordingly deemed to be interested in the respective shares held
by the aforesaid companies.

(5)  Schroders Plc through its subsidiaries, namely Schroder Investment
Management Limited, Schroder Investment Management (Singapore)
Limited and Schroder Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited
held 1,236,000 shares, 24,057,000 shares and 15,421,447 shares in the
Company respectively, and was accordingly deemed to be interested in
the respective shares held by the aforesaid companies.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no person, other than
the Directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares” above, had registered an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AELEESEHRBAERRAA

FERRRAMATRRORBERS 2
i (&)

Wizt - (&)

3 RUKEERAAKEESEZEB
FAARNE] 70,398 1% & 52,800 B 15 o

Speed Star Holdings Limited# & A& 2 7]
42,000,000 BBt » 3% A A | A B8
REBRBERES -

Eimoling Company Limited# & Z& A #]
14,244,316 % i 7 + Speed Star Holdings
Limited &% & 70 B S5 £ 9 R BB % A A
44.5% 2 IR AR o

CWS Holdings Limited# & & 2 &
32,616,000 M 17 - %A Al —EEE(E
TEREE  ABARETERZETLZKIL
AREFR—FZEA © UBS TC (Jersey) Ltd.
BEETZETA  BEERAEEAR
132,616,000 IR (D1 ax ©

it - Bk B E R EE G IR Ak
B KA F)56,314,714 % K 75,955,996 % i
iz AAREERERED IHER A
AN T 46,913,116 1% K 75,541,420 B%
MR

(@) The Capital Group Companies, Inc. i B E
J& /7] Capital Guardian Trust Company
Capital International, Inc. ~ Capital
International Limited - Capital International
Sarl [z Capital Research and Management
Company 73 5ll £ A 78 2 714,884,300 %
4,179,435 ~ 2,366,000 % 14,316,000 %
%.62,110,300 i A fn » B AR AR £
MARIR BRA 2 RIntEs o

(59 Schroders Plci 18 £ Kf B 2 ] Schroder
Investment Management Limited + Schroder
Investment Management (Singapore) Limited
K Schroder Investment Management (Hong
Kong) Limited 93 5l %5 % X A & 1,236,000
J ~ 24,057,000 i K2 15,421,447 I B 17 -
HwE AR LA RS BRE ZRD

T o

FREXBEN R_FT—-—AF+ A
=t—H BRUALIEERROH2ES]—
HARERARE A ARAERIN  UEA
o AL RAR R B AD S ARRE A 10 o B R
ARE(E S LB R )F 336 AT
B R SAR ©
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group did not have any connected transactions
which were subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the year and
up to the date of this report.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the 2016 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group as a whole strives to adhere to the highest standards of
transparency, accountability and corporate governance, balancing and
protecting the interests of shareholders, customers and employees. The
Company has complied throughout the year 2015 with the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), except for the derivation from a code provision
A.2.1 of the Code which is explained in the relevant part of this report.

The Board

Board composition

The Board comprises eleven Directors, of whom three Executive Directors
("ED"), four Non-executive Directors (“NED”) and four Independent
Non-executive Directors (“INED"). In addition, a list containing the
names of the Directors and their roles and functions is available on the
websites of the Group and the Stock Exchange.

Chairman and Group General Manager

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing holds both positions of the Chairman
and the Group General Manager of the Company. The Board is of the
opinion that the present board structure provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies.

Independence of Directors

Save for the relationships disclosed in the biographical details set out
on pages 4 to 8 of this annual report, the Directors do not have family,
material financial, business or other relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each INED written annual confirmation
of their independence as required under the Listing Rules and therefore
the Board considers all INEDs to be independent.

Re-election of Directors

All NEDs (including INEDs) are appointed for specific terms of not more
than three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and re-election in annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Code and the
Company's bye-laws.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded on a regular
basis of their obligations under the Model Code.

All Directors have written to confirm that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

Employees who have access to inside information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with written internal guidelines that follow the
Model Code.

Directors’ continuous professional development

Directors have continuously been updated on major developments of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

During the year, the Directors participated in continuous professional
development by attending briefings/seminars/workshops, and/or reading
materials on the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills and provided their records of training to the Company:

>
V3
mR
¢
S
off

EE2g ()

B
ARRIDHRM EMRRIM S FAB 2 L
BTAERETEFXINERE #H'J(WT
A ERADFIEFEITESR
ZATRSTA AR 7&&%&@1“%%%%
ETRITABITZAML

FEEFOBERD  FARSH—EN
FEAETAIF L R .
FRTEBIASEZAREL - AN
FEBEFAT T 2 EEABIES) -

EBZHABRER

ARTREAEFRUAD L TRARR
tEREERE 2 EAREZ BIAK
RRRESETRER IO EEARA -

FRNEFEBUEGR /MAE/ TH
B Rk/IHEEAUAT IR B2 E
FTEEXER UBERREFREZHE
Rk YERADBRKESE 2 HIIL

Topics on training covered ™'

Name of Directors EENA SRE > Y| e
Executive Directors: BITES !
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing JE KB 7 (@), (b), (c) & (d)
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing RS B (a) & (b)
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing B EE (a), (b), (c) & (d)
Non-executive Directors: FHITES
Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling BELEE (@) & (b)
Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim BEEREL (@) & (b)
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TREXE (@), (b), (c) & (d)
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam ML E (@) & (b)
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES :

Directors:
Mr. LEE Ka Lun FRETE (@), (b), () & (d)
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun BRIF &) 28 (@) & (b)
Dr. LO King Man ESXiEL (@), (b), (c) & (d)
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung B EESLE (@) & (b)

Notes:

(@) regulatory compliance and corporate governance

(b)  finance, law and taxation

(c)  global and local financial market, investment and business environment
(d)  other information relevant to the Group or its business

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Group. It determines the overall strategic direction and management
objectives, oversees significant operational and financial matters and
ensures a framework of risk controls is in place.

The Company has provided to each Director a Directors’ Manual, which
includes the statutory obligations, duties and responsibilities for being a
director. The Directors’ Manual is updated from time to time to reflect
the latest developments in those areas.

Internal guidelines with continuing updates in areas on the Company’s
and the Directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, and the latest
developments or material changes on ordinances, rules or regulations
are provided to Directors from time to time.

The Board has delegated day-to-day operations to management, who
is responsible for implementing the Group’s business strategies and
managing the daily business operations under the leadership of the
Chairman/Group General Manager and the Group Deputy General
Manager, both of whom are EDs.

Management support

All Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Group's
business, operations, and financial matters as well as timely information
that may have affected the Group's businesses. Comprehensive Board
papers are prepared and distributed quarterly to Directors to keep them
informed.

Directors have free access to management for additional information, as
and when required and may solicit independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees

The Board is supported by three committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, whose respective
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Group and the

Stock Exchange.

The participation of members of the Board in the three committees and
their attendance records of the relevant meetings in 2015, are set out

as follows:

>
V3
mR
¢
S
off

ExZEE

EXed-EZEeXE DHREKRE
Be FHMZEERREZES  HAR
B 0 ] 2 B A R B e B S P 2 A

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BRNERY/ BIRY
Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
Name of Directors BEpe Ezg ERZEEE HMEEE REZEE RREFAS
Executive Directors: HTEE.
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing LS
Chairman and Group General Manager FERERLGE 4/4 - - - 11
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing RSB 3/4 - - 0 11
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing Brmik
Group Deputy General Manager EFo) 3/4 - - - 1M
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling BESEE
Honorary Chairman EEEER 3/4 - - - 0/1
Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim* BEREL* 1/4 - - - 0/
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERE 3/4 212 22 - 0N
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam BEEE 4/4 212 2/2 " "
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTES :
Mr. LEE Ka Lun TRERE
Chairman of the three Committees ZHZEe21F 4/4 212 2/2 " n
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun BRESE 4/4 20 0 1 1
Dr. LO King Man ESufEL 4/4 20 0 1 1
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung B3k 4/4 20 0 1 1
- The Director is not a member - EFVIKA

* Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim was re-designated from Executive Director to Non-
executive Director on 2 June 2015

Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in proposed transactions or contemplated issues are required to
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee

The principal duties are to monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements, oversee the Group's financial reporting systems, internal
control and risk management procedures and the relationship with
the external auditors. Members possess appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or management expertise as required under
the Listing Rules.

In 2015, the Committee reviewed the Group's accounting principles and
practices, development in accounting standards and associated impacts
on the Group, risk management issues, audit findings, compliance,
strategy summary and financial reporting matters, and the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system. The Committee discussed the
above matters, where appropriate, with management and external
auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The principal functions include reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board for approval on the remuneration policies and packages for
Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of Directors consists of a basic annual fee with
additional payments for serving on Committees. It is not set individually.
EDs receive additional pay packages by virtue of their positions in
management.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the remuneration package of
Directors and senior management, staff bonus scheme and Directors’
fees.

Nomination Committee

The main duties include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, assessing the independence of INEDs, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and determining the policy for nomination of Directors.
In carrying out the responsibility for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board, the Committee gives
adequate consideration to the board diversity policy. Its aim is to ensure
that the Board is appropriately constituted with a balance of knowledge,
skills and experience.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board. It also assessed and confirmed
the independence of an INED, and recommended to the Board the
nomination of Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling, Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim, Mr. Vincent
CHOW Wing Shing, Dr. CHAN Bing Fun and Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam for
re-appointment as Directors by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2015 (the “2015 AGM").
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in August 2013. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Group’s corporate strategy. All Board appointments are based on
meritocracy, and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
regional experience. The ultimate decision is based on the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board of Directors is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and keeping up to date with the
latest requirements of the Code and the Listing Rules.

In 2015, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

Financial Reporting

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, is responsible for
overseeing the preparation of the Group's financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the Group's state of affairs, results and
cash flows in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards.

External auditors

The reporting responsibilities of the Group's independent external
auditors, Ernst & Young, on the Group's financial statements are set out
in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 34 and 35 of this annual
report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Financial Reporting (continued)

External auditors (continued)

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their reappointment as the
Company's external auditors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The services provided by Ernst & Young and the associated fees thereof
for 2015 were as follows:

Audit i
Taxation %
Others Hip

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that adequate internal controls
are in place to safequard the Group’s assets and manage risks. Policies
and procedures are designed for providing reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and managing risks of failure in
operational systems and achievement of the Group's objectives.
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2015 2014

HK$"000 HK$'000
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3,437 3,391
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4,549 4,697
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Z R T 2R

Major internal controls currently in place within the Group included the
following:

FEEHRELTENHFEXEERUTE
E

An Internal Audit team conducts regular audits of different aspects
of the operations and reports any findings to the Audit Committee

All inventory movements are properly recorded and reconciled, and
verification and cross-checking with source documents procedures
are in place

Policies are set to cover the integrity of trading practices,
safekeeping of customer assets, and credit control for the
securities and futures broking business and wholesale of precious
metals

Major or material connected transactions of the Company require
pre-approval of INEDs

Business plans are prepared annually. Income and expenditure are
subject to regular budgetary review

Information access is managed on a need-to-know basis.
Guidelines and procedures are in place to protect personal data
and to ensure the integrity of communication systems
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Internal Control (continued)

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group's internal
control system for the year ended 31 December 2015, with reference to
the internal audit reports and the representations made by management
and concluded that adequate and effective internal controls are being
maintained. The annual review also considers the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
There were no significant areas of concern identified during the year.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s memorandum
of association and bye-laws. A copy of the latest consolidated version
of the memorandum of association and bye-laws is available on the
websites of the Group and the Stock Exchange.

Corporate and Social Responsibilities

Business ethics

The Group is committed to a high standard of business ethics and
integrity. Code of conduct defining the employees’ ethical standards
and the Group’s non-discriminatory employment practices have been
adopted and guidelines are posted on the Group's intranet for ease of
access by all staff.

Employees

The Group recognizes that human capital is a key asset. Therefore,
the Group places emphasis on development and retention of staff
and commits to offer a healthy and safe working environment to
employees. Guidelines on enhancing safety consciousness are in place
for compliance and reference by employees. The Group also conducts
training both in Hong Kong and in the Mainland, using in-house
and external resources as appropriate. Programmes are offered on a
variety of subjects, falling mainly into the categories of sales skills and
management technique, and pitched at different levels of experience
and expertise.

Aside from basic salary, employees are rewarded with performance-
based bonuses. Fringe benefits such as paid vacation leave and
insurance are commensurate with local practices and legal requirements.
Individual performance is assessed annually within a uniform framework,
which is applied to all territories and is based on openness and
objectiveness. The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
7 December 2010, which serves as an incentive to attract, retain and
motivate talented eligible employees, including directors. Details of the
share option scheme are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
It is the Group's policy to abide with best practice principles, to hire the
most suitable person for the job with competitive emoluments and to
motivate staff with incentives and positive reinforcement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate and Social Responsibilities (continued)

Customers and Suppliers

The Group values mutually beneficial long-term relationships with its
customers and suppliers. The Group is committed to providing high-
quality products and services to its customers and developing stable and
sustainable partnership among its suppliers.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it engages. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group’s commitment statement
together with a comprehensive list of tips on environmental protection,
are posted on the Group’s intranet for easy access and reference by all
staff. Staff members are required not to put shark fin on the menu for
all company entertaining, and are asked to do the same for personal
consumption. Employees are encouraged to reduce use of paper and
electricity, and recycle paper and toner cartridges. Wherever feasible
packaging are made of biodegradable material and designed to provide
residual use to consumers.

Compliance with laws and regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations, in particular those have significant impact
on the Group. The management is responsible for ensuring that the
conduct of business is in conformity with the applicable laws and
regulations.

Contributions to the community

In addition to giving donations to educational, cultural and charitable
organizations for scholarship and other purposes, the Group encouraged
our staff to actively participate in all manner of ‘giving back’ activities
- blood donation, visits to elderly and children homes and training
centers for disabled children, fundraising and donating goods events
for underprivileged students and rehabilitation centers for children, etc.
Such activities not only covered our community but also extended to
Mainland China and Macau.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Communication

Shareholder communication

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication with
the Company’s shareholders and other stakeholders. A shareholders’
communication policy with the objectives of ensuring a transparent
and timely communication with shareholders and other stakeholders
via various means, has been established. The general meetings of the
Company provide a forum for communication between the Board and
the Shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of
the three Committees and other members of the respective committees
are available to answer questions at the general meetings.

Investor communication
Aside from annual reports and interim reports, the Group disseminates
timely information on its websites to investors and consumers alike.

Management also attends meetings with financial analysts and fund
managers from time to time. These meetings allow management to
maintain close contact with investors which facilitate their understanding
of the Group's strategies and operations.

Internal communication

The Group's staff members are linked by the Group’s intranet for
prompt sharing of information. Regular meetings of staff members from
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan are held to share and discuss
issues on achieving the Group's strategic objectives, actual operational
practices, local rules and regulations and compliance practices.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM") of the Company. Shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company may send a written request to the Board of the Company
to request for an SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company's registered office for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for
the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the
requisition; or

(b)

not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office for the attention of the Company
Secretary. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards, proposing a person for election as a director, please refer to
the procedures available on the website of the Group.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary at 27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (email: ir@chowsangsang.com).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

s
EY:

To the shareholders of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow Sang
Sang Holdings International Limited (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 36 to 125, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B BE R &

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2015
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BE_Z-RFt-_A=1—RILFE

TURNOVER
Jewellery retail
Other businesses

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other gains, net

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Finance costs

Share of profits of associates, net

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Basic

Diluted
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HENDHER
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2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P& TER TAET
5
16,723,183 16,932,576
2,346,074 2,313,382
19,069,257 19,245,958
(14,841,158) (14,950,963)
4,228,099 4,294,995
89,804 98,875
(2,708,693) (2,531,082)
(518,077) (478,145)
58,338 7,710
245,501 =
7 (27,369) (32,263)
454 2,211
6 1,368,057 1,362,301
11 (237,737) (276,907)
1,130,320 1,085,394
1,130,320 1,082,324
- 3,070
1,130,320 1,085,394
13

167.0 cents L

159.9 cents 1l

167.0 cents L

159.9 cents 1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2015

RerzERER
HE-Z-AF+T-A=T-HALFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Available-for-sale investments:
Changes in fair value
Reclassification adjustment for
gain on disposal included in the
consolidated statement of profit
or loss

Exchange differences on translation

Net other comprehensive income/(loss) to be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods

Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Gain on property revaluations

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year, net of tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests
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2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
1,130,320 1,085,394
201,493 209,839
(245,501) =
(44,008) 209,839
(242,209) (132,569)
(286,217) 77,270
= 3,850
(286,217) 81,120
844,103 1,166,514
844,103 1,168,028
- (1,514)
844,103 1,166,514
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REPBRRR

As at 31 December 2015 RZZE—AF+ZA=1+—H
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
By aE FEx FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE - S N R 14 720,808 760,312
Investment properties REME 15 296,067 281,924
Prepaid land lease payments B L EERIE 16 12,422 13,299
Intangible assets B EE 17 271 271
Other assets Hith & & 18 239,359 234,866
Investment in an associate REE N R 21RE 19 24,739 24,761
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 20 824,959 869,067
Deferred tax assets EREFIAEE 31 11,410 29,307
Total non-current assets BIERBEE 2,130,035 2,213,807
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 21 6,676,380 7,385,323
Accounts receivable JE U BR R 22 775,000 718,745
Receivables arising from securities and ErRBERREE Y
futures broking FE AR X 22 187,018 247,997
Prepayments, deposits and BAFIE - ek
other receivables H A 8 LS AR K 23 188,376 228,673
Investments at fair value through profit BRATFEERERE L
or loss ®E 24 36,686 13,388
Derivative financial instruments TESMTE 28 5,798 =
Tax recoverable A EIHE R 410 872
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEBELRS 25 390,680 424,968
Cash and cash equivalents RekZERAe 25 1,620,982 1,008,636
Total current assets BREEE 9,881,330 10,028,602
CURRENT LIABILITIES k=R
Accounts payable FEfTRR K 26 86,864 136,215
Payables arising from securities and BHRNHERLEESX
futures broking FESTBR 3R 26 413,145 487,169
Other payables and accruals HiEN TR R BB 27 412,975 520,941
Derivative financial instruments MEemI A 28 = 4,576
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 29 561,233 697,699
Interest-bearing bank borrowings arising ErMMERREE L
from securities and futures broking FERITER 29 15,520 -
Bullion loans EeBEE 30 795,023 1,030,680
Tax payable NG 94,995 31,126
Total current liabilities BREEE 2,379,755 2,908,406
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 7,501,575 7,120,196
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERRBER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 9,631,610 9,334,003
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2015

REPBRRR

RZE—RF+-A=1+—H

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FTHERT T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHRBITER 29 383,397 526,279
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIAEE 31 170,298 160,991
Total non-current liabilities BIEREAE 553,695 687,270
Net assets EEFE 9,077,915 8,646,733
EQUITY &
Equity attributable to equity ARAVERFFA A
holders of the Company FElbHE =
Issued capital BEEITERAR 32 169,230 169,230
Reserves ] 34 8,908,685 8,477,503
Total equity MR 9,077,915 8,646,733
Vincent CHOW Wing Shing XK Winston CHOW Wun Sing Bk
Director BF Director o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2015

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Leasehold
land and
buildings

Issued Share revaluation
capital premium reserve

HELTHR

ERTRA RDEE BFEGRERF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BiE THER THER TERT
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZE—mFE—F—H 169,230 1,051,502 335,599
Profit for the year FREH = - -
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FRE M2 ¢
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale ~ At HH&E®RE 2
investments NHEEZE) = = -
Exchange differences on translation ME N = = = -
Revaluation upon transferring leasehold METH REFEER
land and buildings to investment REMFE ZEH
properties - - 3,850
Total comprehensive income for the year FREHENEEE = = 3,850
Acquisition of non-controlling interests U B PR AR P SR R 2 - - =
Dividend paid to a non-controlling BRN—RMBLE—%
shareholder of a subsidiary FEEARAR R 2 IR B = = =
Transfer from retained profits BEREEH = - -
Dividends declared and paid during the year FRXE k& E IR E 12 - = =
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—mOF+=A=+—H 169,230 1,051,502* 339,449*
At 1 January 2015 R-B-n&E—A—H 169,230 1,051,502 339,449
Profit for the year FRER = = -
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FRE M2 ¢
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale ~ At HH&E®RE 2
investments NEEEZE) = = =
Reclassification adjustment for gain on BN EARRE
disposal of available-for-sale investments REBERERZ
included in the consolidated statement & AT HE
of profit or loss ’EZ e - - -
Exchange differences on translation MEH =5 = = =
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEYNHEE = = =
Transfer from retained profits BEREEHN = = =
Dividends declared and paid during the year RSk & &R E 12 - - =
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RE+-_A=+—H 169,230 1,051,502* 339,449*
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$8,908,685,000 (2014: HK$8,477,503,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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BAREBDE
BE-T-A%+-A=+—ALLEE

KRB ERRE AEL
Difference
arising from
acquisition
Investment of non- Exchange Non-
revaluation controlling fluctuation Reserve Retained controlling Total
reserve interests reserve funds profits Total interests equity
B I IR
LEY FFER
REEMHRE EEZEE HELBHEE REL R T &&t R R
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT THERT THET THET THET THET
(Note 34)
(Pid5E34)
657,101 4,897 418,295 181,972 5,116,304 7,934,900 83,574 8,018,474
— — — — 1,082,324 1,082,324 3,070 1,085,394
209,839 — — — — 209,839 — 209,839
= = (127,985) = = (127,985) (4,584) (132,569)
- - - - - 3,850 - 3,850
209,839 — (127,985) — 1,082,324 1,168,028 (1,514) 1,166,514
- - - - (9,428) (9,428) (29,047) (38,475)
- - - - - - (53,013) (53,013)
— — - 32,331 (32,331) — — -
_ - - = (446,767) (446,767) = (446,767)
866,940* 4,897* 290,310* 214,303* 5,710,102* 8,646,733 - 8,646,733
866,940 4,897 290,310 214,303 5,710,102 8,646,733 - 8,646,733
- - - - 1,130,320 1,130,320 - 1,130,320
201,493 - - - - 201,493 - 201,493
(245,501) - - - - (245,501) - (245,501)
- - (242,209) - - (242,209) - (242,209)
(44,008) - (242,209) - 1,130,320 844,103 - 844,103
- - - 28,395 (28,395) - - -
- - - - (412,921) (412,921) - (412,921)
822,932* 4,897* 48,101* 242,698* 6,399,106* 9,077,915 - 9,077,915
* W EREAER B ARERE MR R 2474 %18 8,908,685,000 T (=T — U4 : 8,477,503,000 %) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2015 BE_Z-hFT-_A=+—HLFE
2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B ek THER FAT
(Restated)
(8%1))
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXKZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 25t B A 1,368,057 1,362,301
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs B%E R 7 27,369 32,263
Share of profits of associates, net GRS N alaH - FE (454) (2,211)
Interest income FEHA 6 (36,224) (47,632)
Dividend income from listed investments EiiRE ZBREMA 6 (21,708) (18,989)
Dividend income from unlisted investments  3F F &R & < B EWA 6 (944) (855)
Net loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - WEREE
plant and equipment JHE FEE B 6 4,113 2,610
Net gain on disposal of derivative financial ~ HESTAS @ T EFWER
instruments 6 (11,632) (38,984)
Net gain on bullion loans designated as at BERBRATEBEIEREL
fair value through profit or Joss EeBEEF N a 6 (84,840) (11,107)
Net fair value gain on investment properties & M¥E 7 D EEEFRE 6 (15,144) (36,298)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on bullion loans BERBRATEBEICREL
designated as at fair value through HEBEENATEET
profit or loss BB (W) 6 (21,013) 20,154
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investments at  fZAFEE:] EREZKEMN
fair value through profit or loss NEEEFEER/ (Ya) 6 (1,998) 2,422
Net fair value loss/(gain) on derivative MEemIE 2 AT EE
financial instruments — transactions not FEE/ (&) - TFE
qualifying as hedges HAHPER RS 6 (10,512) 15,283
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—REE R a2z Was 6 - (2,840)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEERE 2 s
investments (245,501) -
Depreciation e 6 186,838 184,665
Amortization of prepaid land lease BN I EERIE
payments 6 292 298
Impairment of accounts receivable JE W BR TR E 1,066 -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of Eﬁ% MEREES 2 EI
receivables arising from securities and AR R WTE/(/WET%@)
futures broking, net i (56) 64
Write-down of inventories to net realizable Wﬁﬁf """"" #I3HFE
value 19,078 35
1,156,787 1,461,179
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEZRD,/(38mM) 563,677 (581,645)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable FEWBR K2 R >,/ (32 ) (68,639) 8,415
Decrease/(increase) in receivables arising BHEREREESE 2B
from securities and futures broking Rz, /(32 ) 61,035 (24,741)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits  F81 208 ~ & K 2 fE Uk
and other receivables BB,/ (38 ) 29,243 (69,049)
Decrease/(increase) in cash held on behalf REFEEREZRD
of clients (58 h0) 34,288 (39,436)
Decrease in accounts payable JERTRR TR 2B D (53,166) (24,329)
Increase/(decrease) in payables arising from &% & EAG &2 E £ 7 BT
securities and futures broking BRmziEm/ Omd) (74,024) 60,253
Changes in derivative financial instruments T4 &R A 2 & 11,632 38,984
Decrease in other payables and accruals Hi BRI R ERTIHE 2B (145,139) (119,893)
Cash generated from operations KeEmERe 1,515,694 709,738
Interest received EYFLE 36,062 47,203
Interest paid ERHE (2,162) (3,718)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BRNEBNER (23,945) (194,220)
Elsewhere taxes paid RAE=R uh:ul Y rh (122,562) (170,538)
Net cash flows from operating activities REXBHG R REFHE 1,403,087 388,465
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2015 BE_Z-hF+T_A=1t—RHLFE
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B &E FEx FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant BEME  HBEEFRHEEE
and equipment 14 (172,224) (188,872)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEY¥E HRRREIER
plant and equipment B3R 34 1,016
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale ﬁﬁ—ﬂ,\ﬁﬁhﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
investments 245,601 =
Increase in other assets Hth & B 2 30 (4,493) (36,706)
Acquisition of equity interests in a subsidiary UWEN—KKIB D 72 IRAER - (38,475)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — KBk A Bl FT S 508 - 3,000
Dividends received from an associate BR—FREERRIRE 476 440
Dividends received from listed investments 2 F TR &R E 408 18,989
Dividends received from unlisted investments =4t 3E &R &S 944 855
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing BEZSME,/(FTR)Z
activities R mEREE 70,746 (239,753)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEHHERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans HMILRITER 2,671,842 3,609,584
Repayment of bank loans Tﬁ}%fﬁﬁﬁam (2,935,670)  (3,551,437)
New/(repayment of) bullion loans, net g/ (BE)ESEBREE  FE (117,471) 333,123
Interest paid EANELES (27,083) (25,196)
Dividends paid EANE (412,921) (446,767)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling BN KK B R R —BIEER
shareholder of a subsidiary BRR 2 RS = (53,013)
Net cash flows used in financing activities RERSACRESREFE (821,303) (133,706)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH REeRZERAEZEMERE
EQUIVALENTS 652,530 15,006
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REGzR e RERE S
of year ) 1,008,636 1,008,873
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SMNE[EREEHZLE - H(E (40,184) (15,243)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZAERERRAS
END OF YEAR 1,620,982 1,008,636
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERERAREFEFIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHER 25 1,566,666 982,183
Non-pledged time deposits with original FRERHAPR=EA2
maturity of less than three months when AT BFR
acquired 25 54,316 26,453
1,620,982 1,008,636
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR S AR

2.1

Corporate Information

Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

o manufacture and retail of jewellery
o wholesale of precious metals
J securities and futures broking

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are detailed in note 43.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
certain buildings classified as property, plant and equipment, bullion loans,
derivative financial instruments and certain equity investments which
have been measured at fair value as further explained in note 2.4 to the
financial statements. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1

DEER

AEEEBBERARRA RN A REEH
KYZBRAR - KRR ZEMEER
iz Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

FRAAGENEZEREBOT :

o  RERERTE
o EEERE
o  BHFLUERK

ARAIMB AR FEERHIFE43

RRERE

AUMBHREDZEBRELGMAEGRD
ZEENBHREEN(BRMBEEERS

HEA - BAGH R RRE) AR
EERMNZ G RAREB R RGN 25K
BATMARE - RAMBREME 2.4
E—TBRE URATFEEFEZREY
X - DBEANE BERREZETE
T EeBRE TASRIARETR
DEREI - R BRE THRE L KAED
R - AMBRENETLESR  RAEHE
RESN - FIBEBEGHBEREO T

REEE

AEAMBRERRBE_FT—0F
T A=+ HIEFEZAEENH
HE-MBRAA D —HAARAEE
AEEEFCER(BREBILEER) -
EAEERB2EKKRETNBRIE
PMARTEIORNEARKEES
BEr R YABNERYERK
RETMEN(IRZEAKEBAARE
NETERRETNEEEZHNRE#
M) FBZ S0 WA - BVERGEGIE -

EARAERARREEONBERETK
ZYREEIBERE - AREEEHR
AHRERZRERATEERE EAR K
RETWEN B :

@ BERRESEMREE[EEZA
HIZ B
(b) WEMENZHRELZEN: R

(@ FEEZEZEREERTE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR S AR

2.1

2.2

Basis of Preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognizes (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

Contributions

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above revised standards has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements and there have been no
significant changes to the accounting policies applied in these financial
statements.

2.1

2.2

RREE(H)
REEE(H)

MELRMMBRERAREZERESE
HMRERRBEADR BN BRR
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By BREAHE  SEHRHIEELY
Bl

BakREM2EKEER 2 SAEKED
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@ A E S SRR AR R A R
BERER - MAESRBERNARRZEESR

BE - #x WA FAXEBRERE B
REFEIRE M2 -

fis = B RAE BN £ XAt 2 = IR #E
TLRZ— IE‘JZ:JIEHjEE*‘;@J AEEEE

MR EHRENR - MEBARM
*ﬁféﬁéf“%b i 3 8 Sk KR HIRE - Al
B HANREE

WMARBREHIB LR 2 EHE - AT

BRERANZHNBARZEAE(BEESE)
REE: (VEMEERBRREER KA
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AEERAEE SRS B RRA TS

1B IE TR

EEenEAZ0E BRI

s EalR
-3-35% SEEAIRHS
—=-— gy S8 (53]
2EEEY

-3 SEEEIBES
“2-=rgEy S8 53]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR S AR

2.2

2.3

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) issued by the
Stock Exchange relating to the disclosure of financial information with
reference to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the
current financial year. The main impact to the financial statements is on
the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the financial
statements.

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in

Joint Operations

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortization'

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Amendments to
HKAS 27 (2011)

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements'

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

2012-2014 Cycle

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016;
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018;
Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the Group; and

Originally effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, which
has been deferred/removed and the adoption of the amendments continues to be
permitted. A new effective date of the amendments will be determined at a future
date.

2.2

2.3

B BRERRE 228 (H)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR S AR

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace
HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January
2018. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the standard upon
adoption and expects that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have an impact
on the classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognized in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The amendments were originally intended to
be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
In January 2016, the HKICPA issued an update which defers/removes
the effective date. A new effective date of the amendments will be
determined at a future date.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognizing revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
In September 2015, the HKICPA issued an amendment to HKFRS 15
regarding a one-year deferral of the mandatory effective date of HKFRS
15 to 1 January 2018. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January
2018 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR S AR

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements in respect of
the presentation and disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit or loss and the
statement of financial position may be disaggregated;

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present
the notes to financial statements; and

(iv)  that the share of other comprehensive income of associates and
joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must be
presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between
those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when
additional subtotals are presented in the statement of financial position
and the statement of profit or loss. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle in HKAS 16
and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating business (of which the asset is part) rather than
the economic benefits that are consumed through the use of the asset. As
a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances
to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The amendments are not expected to have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption on 1
January 2016 as the Group has not used a revenue-based method for the
calculation of depreciation of its non-current assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR S AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group's
share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of associates is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates,
except where unrealized losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In
all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognizes any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss
of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Gooawill previously eliminated against consolidated retained profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 30 Business Combinations in 2001, goodwill arising on
acquisition was eliminated against consolidated retained profits in the
year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains
eliminated against consolidated retained profits and is not recognized in
the statement of profit or loss when all or part of the business to which
the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to
which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, bullion loans, derivative
financial instruments and certain equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization) had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and

that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third

party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the parent of the Group.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalized in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Leasehold land and buildings

Not depreciated

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 2.5%

Plant and machinery 10% to 30%

Leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures
and equipment

Motor vehicles

10% to 33%
30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognized in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognized is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

The transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment have been adopted for property, plant and
equipment stated at valuation. As a result, those assets stated at revalued
amounts based on revaluations which were reflected in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 1993 have not been revalued
by class at the end of the reporting period. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the leasehold land and buildings revaluation
reserve realized in respect of the previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment properties,
the related revaluation surplus is retained in the leasehold land and
buildings revaluation reserve and remains there until the subsequent
disposal or retirement of the property, where by that time the revaluation
surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in leasehold land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year of
the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties,
the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group
as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortized
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

The Group's intangible assets, representing eligibility rights to trade on
or through the Stock Exchange and Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited
(the “Futures Exchange”), have indefinite useful lives and are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
Such intangible assets are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset and are recognized in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the
cost of the leasehold land and buildings as a finance lease in property,
plant and equipment.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-
sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognized
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognized
in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends on these financial assets, which are
recognized in accordance with the policy set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortization is included in other income
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(@

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or
loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealized gains or
losses recognized as other comprehensive income in the investment
revaluation reserve until the available-for-sale financial assets
are derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss, or until the available-
for-sale financial assets are determined to be impaired, when
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
assets are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (i) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (ii) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating the fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the
ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification
becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on
that asset that has been recognized in equity is amortized to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the assets using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortized cost and
the maturity amount is also amortized over the remaining life of the
asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

J the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

J the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and
to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognized in the statement profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on
an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its
fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets
are not reversed.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at the end of
each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an asset or
a group of assets is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognized in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognized in the statement for profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the statement
of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and borrowings, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

(a)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
The net fair value gain or loss recognized in the statement of profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss, including bullion loans, are designated
at the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39
are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as bullion contracts,
to hedge its bullion price risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when
the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of production overheads. Net realizable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,
except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

from the rendering of services, in the period in which such services
are provided,;

commissions and brokerage income on dealings in securities and
futures contracts, on the transaction dates when the relevant
contract notes are executed;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset;

(f) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established; and

income from the sale of investments at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale investments, on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are executed.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilized by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the end
of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave
earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’'s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China and Taiwan are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the respective local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs to the
central pension schemes. The contributions are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the respective central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are recognized as liabilities
when these dividends have been approved by the shareholders in general
meetings.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws grant the Directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognized immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and an associate
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements:

(@)  Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

(b)  Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Fair value of an unlisted equity investment

The Group’s unlisted equity investment has been valued using the
income capitalization method. This valuation requires the Group
to make estimates about capitalization rates, and hence they
are subject to uncertainty. The fair value of the unlisted equity
investment as at 31 December 2015 was HK$18,431,000 (2014:
HK$18,291,000). Further details are included in note 20 to the
financial statements.

Estimation of impairment of receivables

The Group determines the impairment of accounts receivable,
receivables arising from securities and futures broking and other
receivables based on objective evidence of impairment and
historical loss experience of the respective individual balances of
the counterparties. If the financial condition of its debtors was
to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis of
making the allowance and its future results would be affected.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in note 31 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

()

Measurement of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the statement of financial
position at their fair value. The fair value was based on valuation on
these properties conducted by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
making assumptions on certain market conditions. Favorable or
unfavorable changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimation costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience in selling goods of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in market
conditions. The Group reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period.

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable operating
segments as follows:

(a)

the manufacture and retail of jewellery segment produces jewellery
products for the Group's retail business and operates retail stores
mainly in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and Taiwan;

the wholesale of precious metals segment trades precious metals to
wholesale customers;

the securities and futures broking segment provides brokering and
dealing services for securities and futures; and

the other businesses segment comprises, principally, the investment
in properties for their rental income and capital appreciation
potential, and other jewellery related businesses.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit
before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with
the Group's profit before tax except that certain dividend income, gain
on disposal of available-for-sale investments and share of profits of
associates, net are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2015

Segment revenue

Sales to external
customers

Intersegment sales

Reconciliation:
Elimination of
intersegment sales

Segment results

Reconciliation:

Dividend income

Gain on disposal of
available-for-sale
investments

Share of profit of
an associate

Profit before tax

BE-Z-1F
+=A=t-AH
LEE

L6
HETIRRP

WERIHE

97

BN HE

£ B

B8 -

REMKA
] it
2

BB E AT
R

BRBLATE A

4. REIBERE)

Manufacture Wholesale Securities
and retail  of precious and futures Other
of jewellery metals broking businesses Total
RERE BERE BER Hit
RZ2E R 2 HERE £ &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT FTHERT THET THET
16,723,183 2,243,735 50,671 51,668 19,069,257
- 1,231,736 - 3,013 1,234,749
16,723,183 3,475,471 50,671 54,681 20,304,006
(1,234,749)
19,069,257
1,006,505 23,366 26,777 43,267 1,099,915
22,187
245,501
454
1,368,057
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4.  Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2015

Other segment
information

Interest income

Dividend income

Net fair value gain on
investment properties

Net fair value gain
on bullion loans
designated as at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net fair value loss/
(gain) on derivative
financial instruments
— transactions not
qualifying as hedges

Net fair value gain on
investments at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net gain on bullion loans
designated as at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net gain on disposal of
derivative financial
instruments

Net loss on disposal of
items of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation

Amortization of prepaid
land lease payments

Impairment of accounts
receivable

Reversal of impairment of
receivables arising from
securities and futures
broking, net

Write-down of inventories
to net realizable value

Finance costs

Capital expenditure
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Manufacture
and retail

of jewellery
REHE
REE
HK$'000
TERT

(14,319)

(21,013)

(10,814)

(84,327)

(9,390)
4,113
185,296

292

1,066

18,975
24,046
170,927

Wholesale
of precious
metals
BB
iR
HK$'000
THERT

2)

302

(513)

(2,242)

103

4. REIBERE)

Securities
and futures Other
broking businesses
BHER Hity
HELLE %%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TET
(21,829) (74)
(465) -
- (15,144)
(1,998) -
1,542 -
(56) =
3,323 -
1,297 -

Total
At
HK$'000
BT

(36,224)
(465)

(15,144)

(21,013)

(10,512)

(1,998)

(84,840)

(11,632)
4,113

186,838

292

1,066

(56)

19,078
27,369
172,224
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4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2014

Segment revenue

Sales to external
customers

Intersegment sales

Reconciliation:
Elimination of
intersegment sales

Segment results
Reconciliation:
Dividend income
Share of profits of
associates, net

Profit before tax

4. REIBERE)

Manufacture Wholesale Securities
and retail of of precious and futures Other
jewellery metals broking businesses Total
KERLE 4B EHER HAt
REE # 2 HEga 3 &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET FHT THET
BE-Z—ME§
+=A=+-~H
LLFE
72Uk =
HETINREP
16,932,576 2,107,981 39,572 165,829 19,245,958
A EPEHE 728 970,895 - 2,971 974,594
16,933,304 3,078,876 39,572 168,800 20,220,552
SE :
HIHNEHE
(974,594)
19,245,958
D EEE 1,255,129 22,384 19,815 44,322 1,341,650
FHED -
R EHA 18,440
FE{G B & R A
wmA  FE 2,211
B 250 Al A 1,362,301
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4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Manufacture
and retail of
jewellery
KERLE
REE
HK$'000
FHT
Year ended HE-Z-—IF
31 December 2014 +=A=+-—H
LEFE
Other segment HihpHER
information
Interest income FLE WA (19,329)
Dividend income PR EHA =
Net fair value gain on REMEZ AN TFEE
investment properties FEE =
Net fair value loss on EERRATER
bullion loans designated I EEEZELE
as at fair value through  EBEHAFEEE
profit or loss FEE 20,154
Net fair value loss/ TESBIAEY
(gain) on derivative NEEEFEE/
financial instruments (fzz)- FREAEH
— transactions not HERLR S
qualifying as hedges 15,542
Net fair value loss on BATBEICRE
investments at fair value ZH®%EMNATFEE
through profit or loss FEE -
Net loss/(gain) on bullion $&F AiE A FEE
loans designated as at AEREBCESE
fair value through profit £ & %12,/
or loss (Ma) (13,754)
Net gain on disposal of ~ HEFTESHMTA
derivative financial el Gy
instruments (38,210)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal I &E¥EE - #EE KM%
of items of property, HBEEFEE/
plant and equipment (hzx) 2,647
Gain on disposal of an HE—KBEARZ
associate Wz =
Depreciation e 182,514
Amortization of prepaid ~ #HTEN HIFAE
land lease payments I 298
Impairment of receivables ## &HIECLEE
arising from securities 2 EWEBRFURE -
and futures broking, net  JE& =
Write-down of inventories #{##477 & % Al &3
to net realizable value FE 34
Finance costs s8R 27,183
Capital expenditure EARERE 187,328

Wholesale
of precious
metals
#E
HK$'000
FHET

(259)

2,647

(774)

4., REFIWER(E)

Securities

and futures Other

broking businesses

EHER HAt

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

(28,225) (77)

(1,404) -

- (36,298)

2,422 -

= (37)

- (2,840)

1,966 185

64 -

5,080 -

1,544 -

Total
At
HK$'000
THET

(47,632)
(1,404)

(36,298)

20,154

15,283

2,422

(11,107)

(38,984)

2,610

(2,840)
184,665

298

64

35
32,263
188,872
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR S AR

4.  Operating Segment Information (continued)

(a)

(b)

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers

Hong Kong and Macau
Mainland China
Taiwan

4. REIBERE)

(a)

BB MR
FEA

AN
EE

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the

customers.

Non-current assets

Hong Kong and Macau
Mainland China
Taiwan

BB MR
Bl

A=

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes available-for-sale investments and

deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

(b)

The turnover from the Group's largest customer amounted to less
than 10% of the Group's total turnover for the current and prior

years.

it E&E R

HE FHIKEF Wat
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT
11,262,353 12,202,321
7,690,270 6,910,642
116,634 132,995
19,069,257 19,245,958

LB B R T RE P S 3

)

HRGEE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiET
793,557 796,164
471,810 491,898
28,299 27,371
1,293,666 1,315,433

LRFRBEEEN IR EEME
wRES  TTEEAHEERE

FBERBIREE °

FHIEEFZEH
RAFER EFEREAEERK
EPZEXBEEARE

LH10% ©

BEXED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MR M EE

5.  Turnover 5. HEH
Turnover, which is also the Group’s revenue, represents the net invoiced s BIAEE 2 0 EFEREMS
value of goods sold, after allowances for returns, trade discounts and RE - RSFMEALEREELER2HE
value-added tax; commission on securities and futures broking and gross RE BARBELLEHe A RAR
rental income earned during the year. BHA ©
Revenue from the following activities has been included in turnover: BEBEOEATER 2
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Sale of goods EmiHeE 19,007,356 19,195,753
Commission on securities and futures broking FHRRELERASRA 50,671 39,572
Gross rental income BHESWA 11,230 10,633
19,069,257 19,245,958
6.  Profit before Tax 6.  BRBIADER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBZBRBAERNE R, GIA)
2015 2014
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
BisE THERT FET
Cost of inventories sold HERA 14,918,552 15,001,019
Write-down of inventories to net realizable value* i $577 = = o] &35 5 * 19,078 35
Depreciation e 14 186,838 184,665
Amortization of prepaid land lease payments AN L AERE 16 292 298
Operating lease payments in respect of leasehold EHHEELHREF Y
land and buildings: RETRHNAR
Minimum lease payments REBEMAK 911,579 801,262
Contingent rents S AEE 27,513 33,786
939,092 835,048
Auditors' remuneration 22 Gl 3,611 3,534
Employee benefit expense**(excluding EERAFA ** (TBE
Directors’ emoluments (note 8)): EXME(ME8)) :
Wages and salaries TERF® 1,073,521 1,068,989
Pension scheme contributions RINEFTEIHET 160,341 140,185
Less: Forfeited contributions o BRI (329) (42)
Net pension scheme contributions BARSFEMETFE 160,012 140,143
1,233,533 1,209,132
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6.  Profit before Tax (continued) 6. BRBIADEFI(E)
2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz TERT FAT
Impairment of accounts receivable JE W BR ORI E 22 1,066 =
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of receivables — FEHRHAELLEEZ
arising from securities and futures broking, net FENCBRFORE,/ CRIERE) -
FE 22 (56) 64
Direct operating expenses (including repairs IS 2 RE
and maintenance) arising on rental-earning MEBEFLEFX
investment properties (BREEERRE) 824 678
Net fair value gain on investment properties’ REME L AT EEF K" 15 (15,144) (36,298)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on bullion loans designated & AR AFBEFEREZ
as at fair value through profit or loss’ ECBEENATERE
FE1E () (21,013) 20,154
Net fair value loss/(gain) on derivative financial TESMIAZATEE
instruments — transactions not qualifying as FER () - TRA
hedges’ TEIRS" (10,512) 15,283
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investments at fair RAFEEERABIIREN
value through profit or loss* ANEEEFEE ()" (1,998) 2,422
Net gain on bullion loans designated as at fair value #ETE BZAFEECEEZ
through profit or loss’ ESBEEFKRR" (84,840) (11,107)
Net gain on disposal of derivative financial HETESMT AT KE"
instruments” (11,632) (38,984)
Net loss on disposal of items of property, plant and HEW% - B R R EER
equipment FEE 4,113 2,610
Gain on disposal of an associate* HE—RBE AT 2 kS 19 - (2,840)
Interest income FSBA (36,224) (47,632)
Dividend income from listed investments EmREZREKA (21,708) (18,989)
Dividend income from unlisted investments FLEMHREZREBA (944) (855)
Foreign exchange differences, net BN ERE - RE 3,892 1,469
@ This balance is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated & IESRBEEREBEERE EIHERA]F o

statement of profit or loss.

B35 The employee benefit expense included an amount of HK$3,192,000 (2014:
HK$3,147,000) paid to a Director’s family members as employee emoluments.

These balances are included in “Other gains, net” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

These balances are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The purpose of the above bullion transactions entered
into by the Group is to manage the Group’s bullion price exposures. Such loans
and contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

* %

EERABAIEREINT REZZRK
KEEREEME 2 £ %3,192,000% 7T
(ZZ 04 : 3,147,000 7T) °

WEERBEESA RaER Atk %
Bl e

WEERBEEFAREREIHERA]
Fo REEIY LRBESCBRHEEEER
SEZESBERRR - ZFEERANT
TREHPBTREZIGM -
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Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts
and other loans

Directors’ Emoluments

BITER B REMER

ZHME

Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules,
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

Fees

Other emoluments:
Salaries and allowances
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable
Pension scheme contributions

itk

HipBi & -
e MR
BN R EM BB
RAEF IR

7.

MBER
MBERZAMET -
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT
27,369 32,263
E=Me

BEEmRA - BB A BEH5383(1)
@ O OROFARAREEES
FIRERDBR KREErEEHERE

LU
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
3,590 3,353
5,871 5,612
1,200 1,672
90 90
7,161 7,374
10,751 10,727

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

AEESEBRBRAERRA

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
2015 4 ¥R
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8. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

An analysis of the emoluments paid and payable to the Directors during

the year is as follows:

2015 —E-hF

Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing A A4
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing BB E
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing &4 B 5E 4

Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling BESKE
Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim’ BAEEEL
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRELE
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam S A
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun* BRINENES A
Mr. LEE Ka Lun* EREEGE
Dr. LO King Man* ERXET*

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung* EE i

2014 —E-MF
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim AEREL

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing XA %4
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing JEVARBK B
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing A Bk 4

Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling BB EE
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERE
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam EMMEE
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun* BRITE) %8 A
Mr. LEE Ka Lun* BREFE
Dr. LO King Man* ERXELT*

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung* B EE L

Director with effect from 2 June 2015

k. Independent Non-executive Directors

8.

ESHE ()

FRENRENTEE M IWT

Discretionary

bonuses Pension

Salaries and paid and scheme
Fees allowances payable contributions Total

BN REN _B#e
e FeRER BETEA at ElftR CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FEn FE7 FE FEn
400 2,898 620 - 3,918
330 291 35 15 671
270 2,340 545 75 3,230
1,000 5,529 1,200 90 7,819
270 342 - - 612
270 - - - 270
330 = = = 330
330 - - - 330
330 = = = 330
400 - - - 400
330 - - - 330
330 - - - 330
2,590 342 - = 2,932
3,590 5,871 1,200 90 10,751
255 - - - 255
370 2,759 875 — 4,004
308 291 50 15 664
255 2,220 747 75 3,297
1,188 5,270 1,672 90 8,220
255 342 - - 597
308 - - - 308
308 - - - 308
308 - - - 308
370 — — - 370
308 - - - 308
308 - - - 308
2,165 342 = = 2,507
3,353 5,612 1,672 90 10,727

Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim was re-designated from Executive Director to Non-executive

# R-E—REAA-ARE  BEEELH

HOTEEHERIFNTES

* BUFNTEF
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10.

Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
There were no other emoluments payable to the Independent
Non-executive Directors during the year (2014: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the year (2014: Nil).
Senior Management’s Emoluments

The emoluments paid to the members of senior management by band are
as follows:

8. EEM<(A)

FRLTEAMHERNTEUFNTES
(ZF-—Hm&E:F)-

FREEYEFTVEMRELRZHEL
AMEHRH(ZT—NF : T) -

RARNRSRERAENZMESMT

Number of individuals

AE
2015 2014
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 % 2,000,000 % 7T 2 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 B 7CE 3,000,000 87T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T E 3,500,000 87T 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 87T % 4,000,0008 7T 1 1
5 5

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
two (2014: two) Directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the emoluments for the year of the remaining
three (2014: three) non-Director highest paid employees are as follows:

Salaries and allowances Fre RoER
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable B RERNBIBEA
Pension scheme contributions RIS ISR

10. LEBEFMES

FRAAEELEERFMERCRERA
(ZT—mF MB)ES HFAME
BRER CRTe . REFHEB=F
(ZZ—m%F : ZR)RIFMFESESR
ZHAMSERDT :

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
7,123 7,246
2,568 2,317
356 362
10,047 9,925
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PR S AR

10. Five Highest Paid Employees (continued)

The number of non-Director highest paid employees whose emoluments
fell within the following bands is as follows:

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

11. Income Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2014:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Current - Hong Kong
Charge for the year
Overprovision in prior years
Current - Elsewhere
Charge for the year
Overprovision in prior years
Deferred (note 31)

Total tax charge for the year

10. EERSHMES(H)
MENFUATHRMN R FHMFESEE

AN ¢ CINE
Number of individuals
AE

2015 2014

2,500,001 % 7T Z 3,000,000 /87T - 1
3,000,001 BT Z 3,500,000 % 7T 2 1
3,500,001 & 7 & 4,000,000 /5 7T 1 1
3 3

1. FE#H

BERMNBRIOBREARBBELZ Aat
JERBEFILATIZ 16.5% (Z T — M4 :
16.5% ) B F o H i & FE R Ba Al 2
BIRASERSEERAER BAR

RHE -
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEL
RE - BA

FAFHIE 71,093 130,089
BAFEBBERE (154) (715)

ANE - i@
FRFIE 157,374 151,654
BEFERERE (17,475) (750)
EIE(KIEE3T) 26,899 (3,371)
FRFIALE 237,737 276,907
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PR S AR

11.

Income Tax (continued)

11.

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which major operating subsidiaries of
the Group are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective tax rate is as

follows:

Profit before tax

Tax charge at the Hong Kong statutory
tax rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%)

Difference in tax rates applied for specific
provinces or enacted by local authorities

Adjustments in respect of current tax of
previous periods

Profits and losses attributable to associates

Estimated income not subject to tax

Estimated expenses not deductible for tax

Effect of withholding tax at 5% or 10% (2014
5% or 10%) on the distributable profits of the
Group's subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China

Tax losses utilized from previous periods

Estimated tax losses not recognized

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate

BRBLAT A

BEBETEHRE16.5%

(ZZ 4% : 16.5%):1EFE
ERREEA DK

BB HEER
FUA T HARE 2 BB 1R

REHE
BERBENR 2 AE
BB 2 IR
BRI oty
BASERPEARLNE

BR A7 fiT B A B 2 Al 7k

HH5%310% (ZZT—M04F :

5% 3 10% )5 ETERR 2 &
{5 FA DA HRE 2 B TE &S 18
WAERZ EETHEEE

BASBEEHEFEZHEA

The Group's share of tax charge attributable to associates amounting
to HK$89,000 (2014: HK$82,000) is included in “Share of profits of
associates, net” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

For companies operating in Mainland China, Taiwan and Macau, corporate
income taxes have been calculated on the estimated assessable profits
for the year at rates of 25% (2014: 25%), 17% (2014: 17%) and the
maximum progressive rate of 12% (2014: 12%), respectively.

Frig i ()
TREAREIRZLEME DA ZMKL
FIERDERER XE M R B E AR
BADEN 2 A - WRIRBEBEHE
HIETTHER -

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
1,368,057 1,362,301
225,729 224,780
53,548 39,001
(17,629) (1,465)
(75) (365)
(84,204) (15,510)
42,431 15,110
15,865 17,490
(224) (2,843)
2,296 709
237,737 276,907

REE (B D AT IE 489,000/ 7T
(ZZ—/m% :82,000/87T) CREHE
SABERE [ EEBEDANER - FE ]
q: o

BRPBAL - AEKRIEEZATM
= LEMBHNRENZGAIERR
A DRI 25% (ZF— VU4 : 25%) -
17% (ZF—MF :17%) 2R ER12%
(ZE—MF: 12%) 2R BER K

H o
ZAr
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12.

3%

Dividends

Dividends recognized as distribution during
the year:
Final dividend for 2014: HK49.0 cents
(2013: HK54.0 cents)
per ordinary share
Interim dividend for 2015: HK12.0 cents
(2014: HK12.0 cents)
per ordinary share

“T-NERBERES :
FE A 49.0 541

—T-RERHERE
BEBEA12.0540

Dividends proposed after the end of the
reporting period:

Final dividend for 2015: HK36.0 cents
(2014: HK49.0 cents)
per ordinary share

Special final dividend for 2015: HK14.0 cents
(2014: Nil) per ordinary share

“T-RFREIRE
FEER36.08(

FEBEI 140584
(ZZ—MmF:F)

The proposed final dividend and special final dividend for 2015 were
recommended after the end of the reporting period and have not been
recognized as a liability at the end of the reporting period, and they are
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Earnings per Share Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$1,130,320,000 (2014: HK$1,082,324,000), and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 676,920,000 (2014: 676,920,000) in issue
during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
current and prior years.

REABRDIKBZRE

(ZZ—=%:54.08()

(ZZ—F : 12.08L)

RBEARBREREZRE

(ZZ—Mm%F : 49.081)
—E-RERRIRPKE

12. RE

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

331,691 365,537

81,230 81,230

412,921 446,767

243,691 331,691

94,769 =

338,460 331,691

“T-RFRIRE Z REBE R BIRE
BERBEMRERERIEE - YARNEE
MABARARE - REFARRBRRED
BERITZBRRBFAEG LiE - Tk
o

13. ALAERERFEAERGERER

BREARFECEHEFARARD R E
HHEA AR F1,130,320,0008 7T
(ZZ /4 : 1,082,324,000% 7T) R E
A E B 17 I #E F 39 % 15 676,920,000 %
(ZF Mm% : 676,920,000 f% ) H3@M At

s
H o
ZAr

AEBNAFER LFEOERTELS
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Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 December
2015

At 31 December 2014
and 1 January 2015:

Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2015,
net of accumulated
depreciation

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation provided
during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2015,
net of accumulated
depreciation

At 31 December 2015:

Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

R-Z—hF
_)E!_E i
HBEHNE

AE

HE

ERITERE

A

RZZE—hF
+=A=+-0"
MR25HTE

RZZ—RF

+ZA=1+-8:
AR A
REHE

REFE

14. MR- BERRE

Leasehold

improvements,

Leasehold furniture,

Freehold land and Plantand fixtures and Motor

land buildings machinery  equipment vehicles Total

HEMF

KA HELh BE  2E- R
EELTH RETF SET I3 E AE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TER TER TR
18,865 538,506 91,832 835,041 11,483 1,495,727
- (144,746) (48,581) (534,355) (7,733) (735,415)
18,865 393,760 43,251 300,686 3,750 760,312
18,865 393,760 43,251 300,686 3,750 760,312
- 246 15,107 155,767 1,104 172,224
- - (106) (4,041) = (4,147)
- (22,579) (14,966) (147,432) (1,861) (186,838)
(701) (9,151) (1,261) (9,523) (107) (20,743)
18,164 362,276 42,025 295,457 2,886 720,808
18,164 527,843 100,814 899,013 10,906 1,556,740
- (165,567) (58,789) (603,556) (8,020) (835,932)
18,164 362,276 42,025 295,457 2,886 720,808
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B A5 R 45 BT 5E
14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 14, Y% BENZEGE)
Leasehold
improvements,
Leasehold furniture,
Freehold land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
land buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
HEME
KA ME T3 BE R Kl
FELTH LT wE RERR HE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TAT TR TAT TR
As at 31 December R-ZE-IE
2014 +ZA=+-H
At 1 January 2014 RZZE-MEF
—R—R:
Cost or valuation RAAMEE 20,005 548,531 79,118 758,054 10,799 1,416,507
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z5HTE = (123,680) (35,879) (470,869) (6,798) (637,226)
Net carrying amount BEFE 20,005 424,851 43,239 287,185 4,001 779,281
At 1 January 2014, RZE-IE
net of accumulated —A—-8"
depreciation MBRFHE 20,005 424,851 43,239 287,185 4,001 779,281
Additions NE = 4,222 14,813 168,069 1,768 188,872
Disposals HE = - (1) (3,611) (14) (3,626)
Depreciation provided FRMERME
during the year - (22,575) (14,175) (146,003) (1,912) (184,665)
Surplus on revaluation EfhAH - 3,850 - - - 3,850
Transfers to investment ~ EEZREYE
properties (note 15) (FHzE15) - (10,886) = = = (10,886)
Exchange realignment X A% (1,140) (5,702) (625) (4,954) (93) (12,514)
At 31 December 2014, R-E—NF
net of accumulated +-A=+-8"
depreciation nk25tE 18,865 393,760 43,251 300,686 3,750 760,312
At 31 December 2014:  R=Z—QNF
+-A=t-H:
Cost or valuation A A 18,865 538,506 91,832 835,041 11,483 1,495,727
Accumulated depreciation  Z&HTE - (144,746) (48,581) (534,355) (7,733) (735,415)
Net carrying amount EEFE 18,865 393,760 43,251 300,686 3,750 760,312

Certain of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued on
31 December 1993 by Knight Frank & Kan, independent professionally
qualified valuers. The leasehold land and buildings were revalued on an
open market, existing use basis. Since 1995, no further revaluations of the
Group's leasehold land and buildings have been carried out, as the Group
has relied upon the exemption, provided under the transitional provisions
of HKAS 16, from the requirement to carry out future revaluations of its
property, plant and equipment which were stated at valuation at that

time.

AEEETHELHIETR-AN=F
ToA=+ - REBURXAERAERM
BRAUBTER  ZFHELHRET
REREREE AT EEEER - A&
BE-NDAAFRABTEGTEAE 16
ROBRGTE T 2 H%  BEHNEE
BEFIRZMF BB RREETREE
o MUBRAHBEE LM RIEFERE
fih o
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PR S AR

14.

15.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Had these leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amount would have been
approximately HK$19,629,000 (2014: HK$21,178,000).

As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group's leasehold land and
buildings with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
HK$42,900,000 (2014: HK$46,800,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (notes 29 and 30).

Investment Properties

R—H—HZRHEE

Carrying amount at 1 January

Transfer from owner-occupied properties B HEBME
Net gain from a fair value adjustment NTEEHEF =
Exchange realignment b i, G B

Rt A=+—RzKEE

Carrying amount at 31 December

The management has determined that the investment properties consist
of two classes of asset, i.e., properties held in Hong Kong and properties
held outside Hong Kong, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property. The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$296,067,000 on 31 December 2015 based on valuations performed
by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further details of which are included in note 35(a) to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$178,000,000 (2014: HK$169,000,000)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
(notes 29 and 30).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on
pages 126 to 128.

14.

15.

L/ ERE - Y BT

45 I EHRE - i RAET IAFE £ AR R
SHTESIEE - HBRE{EX)A 19,629,00055 T
(ZZ—m4 : 21,178,000 7T) °

RZEBE-—RE+-_A=1+—H A&EH
LA % T 48 Bk T ¥ {8 4942,900,000 78 7T
(ZZ—M4 : 46,800,000/8 L) 2 HE
T RIEFERR - BREEATE AR
TEEEER(ME29%30) °

BEE
2015 2014

Note HK$°000 HK$'000
fisk T Tt
281,924 234,740

14 - 10,886
6 15,144 36,298
(1,001) -

296,067 281,924
EREDRBSENE LY  HHRA

BRETRENEEEMELE  IRESR
BEZOERREBEBRISEZYE -
R-F-—RF+-_A=1t—0 " X5H
ZERENEREMBUZELCERIE
MBERTAERDAETZAHEELR
296,067,000 T

ZERBMENCEAOBTE =% - £
—FHBEER I BRENE 5@ A

RZZE—AFE+-_A=+—8 KA=EI
BRI 4218 178,000,000 58 7T (=2 — P04
169,000,000/ 7T ) 2 1% & W) ¥ (EHK I
BAEETE—RIRITEEEERHE
29 %30) °

BRASERENE ZE—FFEENSE
12621288 °
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15.

Investment Properties (continued) 15. REWE(E)
Fair value hierarchy DNFEEER
All investment properties were classified under Level 3 in the fair value PRERENEADBRATEEZR R
hierarchy. During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there = BET-RFR-_ZE—NF+=A
were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level =T —BUEFEARR—E1FH = 2 EE
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group has assessed that the BENTEEFEEY  NEEANELR
highest and best use of its properties did not differ from their existing use. A= AEBEEFTEMEZZRARE
RElERERETES R o
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of SRR TFEESERZEIN=A2ATE
the fair value hierarchy: Bt 2L
Properties Properties
held in  held outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
NERER REBRIH
Ak REZUE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FTEXT THET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2014 R-ZZ-—MFE—-—A—HZRHEE 224,110 10,630 234,740
Transfer from owner-occupied properties #E B BB - 10,886 10,886
Net gain from a fair value adjustment RiE=EHERNATEE
recognized in profit or loss AR F s 36,080 218 36,298
Carrying amount at 31 December 2014 R-E—WFE+=-A=+—-H
and 1 January 2015 k=Z-—hF—H—H
ZEREE 260,190 21,734 281,924
Net gain from a fair value adjustment RERPERNATEE
recognized in profit or loss HE 2 F e 14,280 864 15,144
Exchange realignment [& 5 A% = (1,001) (1,001)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RFE+-_A=+—H
ZHRHEE 274,470 21,597 296,067
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15.

Investment Properties (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs
to the valuation of investment properties:

15. REWEE)

As at 31 December 2015
R-E-RF+=A=+—H

Properties held in Hong Kong
REBEEREZME

Properties held outside Hong Kong
REBRINGE 2%

As at 31 December 2014
R-B-WFE+=A=+—H

Properties held in Hong Kong
REBRBLYE

Properties held outside Hong Kong
REBRINGE 2%

Valuation
techniques

B

Market comparison method
TS L8 E

Market comparison method

(a9

Market comparison method
TS HLERE

Market comparison method
MIHLLEE

ATEESR(E)
VAT R B W R E P L A b E R K 3
RHECHE
Significant
unobservable Range
inputs (weighted average)
ERELUBEHE &5 (InEFH)
HK$
BT

Price per square foot

7,000 to £ 51,000

BRHRERK (10,000)
Price per square foot 200

BYHRER

Price per square foot

6,000 to £ 51,000

BYHRER (9,000)
Price per square foot 200

BFHRER

A significant increase/decrease in the price per square foot would result
in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment
properties.

The investment properties are valued by the market comparison method
having regard to comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant
market. The valuations take into account the characteristics of the
properties which included the location, size, floor level, year of completion
and other factors collectively.

BIHREBAE LA/ THRESBIIRE
ME 2 NFHEEREEM R o

RENEZEREMS L2 LRHE
R 5% - AT HLERETTHE - HEE
BEtMMEZFE - BEMHE K&
B Z=ISHRELREZ-
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16. Prepaid Land Lease Payments

Carrying amount at 1 January
Amortization
Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December

Current portion included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Non-current portion

17. Intangible Assets

Trading rights

Cost at 1 January and 31 December,
net of accumulated amortization

At 31 December:
Cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortization

Net carrying amount

16. FEfMLTHBEFHE
2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
= FEx FAT
R—A—BZEEE 13,595 14,242
3] 6 (292) (298)
PE 1 AR (599) (349)
Rt+t-—RA=+—HZEAE 12,704 13,595
SHABMNRE - ZER
Hitb R R 2 R B b5 (282) (296)
FEREHL D 12,422 13,299
17. EFEE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
RARE
R—A—-BRkt+t-A=+—-Hz
BXAS - 0Bk RETEE S 271 271
R+—A=+—8:
A (BREAE) 524 524
BT (253) (253)
R FE 271 271

Upon the adoption of HKAS 38, trading rights have been considered to
have indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute to the net
cash flows of the Group indefinitely, which are not amortized.

18. Other Assets

Cost of membership for a seat at The Chinese
Gold and Silver Exchange Society (“CGSE")

Statutory deposits in respect of securities and
futures broking

Rental deposits*

RMNBEB G LEREITRR AR S
ERAAASEERAT KA REF
B HMEREAAEEERFHM ES
i °

2REEHH(2REEH5])

SR

FRABEFRIER L EEERSE

HERE

k. The rental deposits are related to office properties and retail shops leased by the
Group (note 35(b)) and the majority of the terms of the lease arrangements are
over one year. Included in this total is an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$55 million (2014: approximately HK$26 million) relating to operating leases
expiring within one year. The Directors are of the opinion that such deposits are
of a long term nature on the basis that the related leases are expected to be
renewed upon their respective expiry dates. Accordingly, the Directors consider it
appropriate to classify such deposits as non-current assets.

18. HEE

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FEL

1,500 1,500

3,076 3,034

234,783 230,332

239,359 234,866

L W AEBZHAERTEERO(HF
35(b)) 2 MBI ER S - KBAHTALNAH
HiB—4F - ERE 475 55,000,000 T
(ZZ 04 : #726,000,00087T)B—F
NIz CEHN - EERAE - KEBAE
NEHNSEIPRENZEE - SR
CEBREED - Al EERAEHL
EREHBERIERDEE -
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19. Investment in an Associate 19. REEQAFZERE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TH
Share of net assets [EIFEE 24,739 24,761
Particulars of the associate are as follows: BENRZERT
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of incorporation attributable Principal
Name issued shares held and business to the Group activity
FrisE 81T R K REB TG
28 RAFE B ERZASL TEEK
Foo Sang Enterprises Company Ordinary shares Hong Kong 36.63 Property
Limited investment
EEBEXERAA LR i MERE

The above associate is indirectly held by the Company and has been
accounted for using the equity method in these financial statements.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the
Group's associates that are not individually material:

Share of the associates’ profit for the year, net*

Share of the associates’ total comprehensive

FEMRREE DR FREA - FE*
Y NG Gk

income, net* FE

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBRBE AR ZIREZ
investment in the associate RERE

* During the prior year, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in Qingdao

Kang Hua Diamond Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Kang Hua”) (a then associate of the
Group), representing 32% of the registered share capital, at a consideration of
RMB2,380,000 (equivalent to HK$3,000,000), and recognized a gain on disposal
of HK$2,840,000 (note 6). After the disposal, Qingdao Kang Hua ceased to be
an associate of the Group. The prior year balances of the share of the associates’
profit for the year and the share of the associates’ total comprehensive income,
included the share of loss and comprehensive loss from Qingdao Kang Hua.

HilB R AR RARRRERE - AN
BREAER AR RE o

TREJHENEANAREHE AR
EEMTER -

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
454 2,211
454 2,211
24,739 24,761

ki RLEEE - AEBEHKE2,380,0007T A
RE(ZEM 3,000,00087T) HELRE
ESREERERATREERE ) (A%
EERZHENR) 2 2 HRAER (h 3
MR Z32%)  TERREHESHEZK
2,840,000/ T(fisE6) - HEBSE
% ZARNTBAREBEZHEDRF -
LR AR A R RS I R R B
REEARSREORESEREZBER
ZHEEE -
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Available-for-sale Investments

Listed equity investments, at market value*

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value
Unlisted equity investments, at cost

The above equity investments were issued by corporate entities.

During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group’s available-for-
sale investments recognized in other comprehensive income amounted to
HK$201,493,000 (2014: HK$209,839,000).

The above investments consist of equity securities which have no fixed
maturity date or coupon rate.

As at 31 December 2015, certain unlisted equity investments with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$260,000 (2014: HK$260,000) were
stated at cost because there is a wide range of possible fair value
measurements so that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of
them in the near future.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's listed equity investments with a
carrying value of HK$476,400,000 (2014: HK$525,402,000) were pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29).

k. On 6 March 2000, under the Schemes of Arrangements of the Stock Exchange and
the Futures Exchange and pursuant to the Exchanges and Clearing Houses (Merger)
Ordinance, the Group received 6,223,500 shares of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited ("HKEC"), six exchange trading rights in the Stock Exchange
and one exchange trading right in the Futures Exchange as a consideration for
the cancellation of its 6 shares held in the Stock Exchange and 1 share held in
the Futures Exchange. The Group disposed of 891,700 shares of HKEC at a total
consideration of HK$245,601,000 during the year, and the gain on disposal
of HK$245,501,000 has been reclassified to profit or loss from the investment
revaluation reserve. As at 31 December 2015, the Group held 4,061,800 shares
(2014: 4,953,500 shares) of HKEC, five exchange trading rights in the Stock
Exchange and one exchange trading right in the Futures Exchange.

Inventories

\}
u]

FEHE 2

Goods held for sale

il
O

/

A

ERRE - RHE

EEMBRMNIRE  BRVEE
FEMBRHERE - BRA

20. THHERE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
806,268 850,516
18,431 18,291
260 260
18,691 18,551
824,959 869,067

Ll iR B AR ERET -

FRNEEREMBEZARSERAZAEER
A E R E B IS 5201,493,00078 7T
(ZZ /4 : 209,839,000/87T)

HRRAREY RTINS R
ZBAES -

R-Z—RE+-A=1+—0  BAER
ZATEENEFNIBERSZ  EERA
EAA R EEATEE WERAE
260,000 70(=Z — M4 : 260,000 7T)
ZEFTELEMBOEBE THIER AT -

R-ZE-—AF+-_A=+—H  A&£E
£ % 17 % & BR ™ 18 476,400,000/% 7T
(ZZ — M4 : 525,402,000 7T ) fE &
. BAEEME—RBTEEHEER
(Btz£29) ©

* R-ZBEZE=FAXE BEXFHR
EHIT(A GO ZRAE Bt E - A%
EMGSEBRSRELEMBRARAS
XA 1) 6,223,500 8% A% 17+ 7~ 1B B 22 At
RHER—ABRFARHHE - WBRKEE
BRI 26D REBRFBEZ
1RRBE (D o 7N £ B 7 4 R 1A 245,601,000
T 2 # R (B & 891,700 % 7 X AT IR
%+ & 2 I8 %5 245,501,0005% 7T B #
RESRBEHEETHIEZBEER - B
—Z-A5+-A=+—0 AEEEE
7 %2 F74,061,800 % B {3 (= F — M 48 :
4,953,500 RR1D) « AEBERMRFER

— (AR5 S -
21. BE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHL
6,676,380 7,385,323
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22.

Accounts Receivable/Receivables arising from Securities and
Futures Broking

Jewellery retail

The Group’'s sales are normally made on a cash basis. Credit card
receivables from financial institutions in respect of retail sales are aged
within one month. There are wholesale customers who have been given
credit periods within 60 days.

Wholesale of diamonds

The Group normally grants credit periods of up to 60 days to its trade
customers.

Wholesale of precious metals

The Group’s wholesale of precious metals is normally conducted on a cash
basis.

Securities and futures broking

Securities deals are settled two days after the trade date, and futures
deals are normally settled on a cash basis.

Trade and credit card receivables FEWE 5 K15 AR
Impairment BE
Accounts receivable JE U BR 5K
Receivables arising from securities and futures TEABEBTESRRY
broking conducted in the ordinary course of FEUHR K
business:
Cash clients BeRP
Clearing houses EEM

Clients for subscription of initial public
offering (“IPO") shares

Loans to margin clients HEEPER

Impairment A
Receivables arising from securities and
futures broking

Total accounts receivable and receivables arising

from securities and futures broking FEUBR S 4R EE

Apart from the receivable balances arising from securities and futures
broking which bear interest at commercial rates, the balances are non-
interest-bearing.

PN e

B R AR ES 2 RBERR

BRERREF I PERLEL L

22. EWER BHRUELLELZ
FEWBR SR
g52E
REBZHE—RAELR S - EEM
K ETHEE KR RRR ZERRD
R—MEA - BEMERFERHESTAR
ZERERE -
O
AEE-RAEFRFPRECRESRRS
ANTH -
BEEEHE
REBZELBHE—RUELERS -
BERHEEE
BHEERRGERMALE  MUEE
E-MRABREEE -
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
777,207 719,976
(2,207) (1,231)
775,000 718,745
ERBEEZ
47,090 76,617
9,774 33,841
21,598 =
109,262 138,301
187,724 248,759
(706) (762)
187,018 247,997
962,018 966,742

REREERER R EF I ERILES
ZRBERTERIN  AF/HIRRE
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22.

Accounts Receivable/Receivables arising from Securities and
Futures Broking (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable due
from customers arising from jewellery retail operations are as follows:

At 1 January R—HA—H

Impaired losses recognized (note 6) ERRREREE(MT6)
Exchange realignment BE 4, S 2

At 31 December mt+-—A=t+—R

The movements in provision for impairment of receivables arising from
securities and futures broking are as follows:

At 1 January Kn—H—H

Impairment losses recognized (note 6) ERRREEE(MT6)
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) BREERESE(fT6)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8

Included in the above provision for impairment of accounts receivable
and receivables arising from securities and futures broking is a
provision for individually impaired receivables of HK$2,913,000 (2014:
HK$1,993,000) with a carrying amount before provision of HK$2,913,000
(2014: HK$1,993,000). Such provision was determined after taking
into account the ageing of the respective account receivable balances,
the creditworthiness of the debtors, their repayment history and their
historical write-off experience. These balances are not expected to be
recoverable.

22. EWER BFRUELELELZ
FEWBRFR (48)
GETEEEEL CEREFRIZRIE
BEZHMT

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET
1,231 1,263
1,066 -
(90) (32)
2,207 1,231

B R EEE L 2 BB R AR
BEEHIT :

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FHT
762 698

36 68

(92) (4)

706 762

FREREREREEFARAERCEEZE
WER FURERES 2B ERIE R ERKER
AEER2,913,0008 (T — W4
1,993,000 ) HBREAHEEEA
2,913,000 £ (= Z — M 4 : 1,993,000
BIT) c AREBEEEE R IBREWKER
EHRR  BRAZEE  REZER
LHERBEMELSEET - BHLELE
BRI E o
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22.

Accounts Receivable/Receivables arising from Securities and 22. EWER RBIRBELLEEZ

Futures Broking (continued) AE T )

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable and receivables arising from RIREHR - BEREZERERRES

securities and futures broking not impaired at the end of the reporting MEERLEE ZRBBRFIREZISHA 2
period, based on the due date, is as follows: RTINS -

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FET

Not yet due PN et 698,317 681,295

Within 30 days past due BHA30E R 98,279 123,792

31 to 60 days past due w31 260 H 20,539 15,857

61 to 90 days past due BHEI61E90H 4,376 3,412

Over 90 days past due EEEE 90 H 9,647 4,085

831,158 828,441

Loans to margin clients” FREFEDR' 109,262 138,301

Clients for subscription of IPO shares* REERAFRBRER * 21,598 =

962,018 966,742

The loans to margin clients are secured by the underlying pledged securities, #
repayable on demand and bear interest at commercial rates. No ageing analysis

is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an ageing analysis is not

relevant in view of the nature of the business of securities margin financing.

As at 31 December 2015, the total market value of securities pledged as

collateral in respect of the loans to margin clients was HK$405,351,000 (2014:
HK$408,824,000).

© As at 31 December 2015, receivables from clients for subscription of IPO shares
of HK$21,598,000 (2014: Nil), are due when the corresponding allotment results
of the related IPO shares have been publicly announced and bear interest at
commercial rates.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers/debtors for whom there was no recent
history of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers/debtors that have a good

FEEFEFNBECERESERE
ERERBEERKEGEKRRTE
EERAENBHTEREEEBILEE
RIS DI T AERE - MEBRBRR AT -
R-ZE—R&E+=-A=+—B B#
FEEFEFUNSLEAEEARZ
#8718 4 405,351,000 8 7T (=B — M4 :
408,824,00087T) °

R-ZZ—AF+=-A=+—H0 %RB
BRARBREREF £ /21,598,000
BL(ZZ—ME: T) DRBEER
NABRZ AEREER MRS I
REEERGE -

ABHARERERBEEREAEY B
EREREHBER /EBAEH - B8
HMEERE RUCR RN Z BN A S B
BRIMEE LB BURR BHABH -

track record with the Group. Based on experience, the Directors of the BB ARTEERAANEEL RT
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary BESREE  BEKIAMRATZ2EHM

in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

| - AR AR LR ER -
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23.

24.

25.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

Prepayments TR FIA
Deposits e
Other receivables H RS BR 3R

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.

Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

LRRHRKRE - BhE

Listed equity investments, at market value

The above equity investments were held for trading and issued by
corporate entities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents/Cash held on behalf of Clients

An analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Cash and bank balances B RIRITFER
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity — 7ZHE | E DR =1E

of less than three months when acquired IR HER
Cash and cash equivalents RekEREL

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group's subsidiaries operating in Mainland China denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to RMB684,786,000 (approximately
HK$817,087,000) (2014: RMB448,308,000 (approximately
HK$559,982,000)). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorized to conduct foreign exchange business.

Az

23.

24,

25.

BRARE - BEREMEERRK

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
121,913 176,406
48,261 45,493
18,202 6,774
188,376 228,673

HiEERERRRERE - B2 Ll
BB MBEERTIRY B TNENLEZ
YRR -

BRVEETEREZRE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET
36,686 13,388
LRBRMEEDFERERE  WARR
BEE®T-
RERERAAE REFKARE
ReRERRE AWM :
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
1,566,666 982,183
54,316 26,453
1,620,982 1,008,636

RBEHR AEEBEFE A EE
ZHBRARAUNAREESBENZEE R
iR 17 17 X /5684,786,0007T A B
(#9817,087,000/8 0 ) (ZE — M 4 :
448,308,000 7T A R #(47559,982,000
BIL)) e ARETEEERABAREME
B R ARYE R B A 2 SNEE IS
R#EE - EEMNETEETE  AEEE
R BEREETINEER ZBITHAR
BEBAHMER -
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25.

26.

Cash and Cash Equivalents/Cash held on behalf of Clients
(continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for two-week to three-month
periods, and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed banks to
hold securities and futures clients’ monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients’ monies as “Cash held
on behalf of clients” under the current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognized the corresponding accounts
payable to the respective clients on the grounds that the Group is liable
for any loss or misappropriation of the clients’ monies. The Group is not
allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.

Accounts Payable/Payables arising from Securities and Futures
Broking

Accounts payable JE 8RR
Payables arising from securities and futures EREEBPES LA
broking conducted in the ordinary course of A EITER :
business:
Cash clients RegP
Margin clients HFREP
Clearing houses EEM

ERRPERLELL
FEAHRRAR

Payables arising from securities and futures
broking

ENERRES RS
B2 EMNRRER

Total accounts payable and payables arising from
securities and futures broking

25.

26.

k=] T,%E

BT

&

RERERAAE REFFARE(H)

BORRESARTERFNTRZHF
KEREM B - EERER 2 ER AR
BEME=EATE - LIRERZEHTF
HMERRFL - RITERFREERYT
AT A S N B AV AT R 2 SRTT ©

AEBRNFERITHARBIEERS - U
FREFRMEEPRABRBEL 2N
B ARBERUFEFPTRD BNEE
FBRRRAR/RDEERT Z[KEP
RERE | YREBEAKEE LXPFHA
ZENERIBR . EEMERRENT
HEEPERN - ARBETARAZF A
BREKEZET -

ERER BERAELLEER
FEAY AR

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
86,864 136,215
349,440 428,732
58,877 58,437
4,828 =
413,145 487,169
500,009 623,384
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26.

27.

Accounts Payable/Payables arising from Securities and Futures
Broking (continued)

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable and payables arising from
securities and futures broking as at the end of the reporting period, based
on the due date, is as follows:

30 AR(BREARZSE
#1860 A

Within 30 days (including amounts not yet due)
Over 60 days

ENRETPRR"
ERFREFERR

Cash clients accounts payable”
Margin clients accounts payable*

Included in the cash clients accounts payable arising from dealing in securities
conducted in the ordinary course of business is an amount of approximately
HK$326,840,000 (2014: HK$355,608,000) representing those clients’ undrawn
monies/excess deposits placed with the Group. As at 31 December 2015, the
cash clients accounts payable included an amount of HK$4,879,000 (2014:
HK$6,161,000) in respect of securities transactions undertaken for the accounts of
certain Directors. The cash clients accounts payable are repayable on demand and
bear interest at commercial rates. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion
of the Directors, an ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the nature of the
business of dealing in securities.

The margin clients accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear interest
at commercial rates. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
Directors, an ageing analysis is not relevant in view of the nature of the business
of securities margin financing.

Other Payables and Accruals

Accruals fEFTIER
Other payables H A e AT BR R
Customer gold deposits BEFES

The Group provides gold deposit services to its customers. Under this
arrangement, customers deposit physical gold with the Group and can
withdraw the same units of gold together with a fixed amount of fee on
the maturity date. The customer gold deposits are estimated based on
the fair value of gold deposits outstanding as at the end of the reporting
period. The basis of estimation is reviewed on an ongoing basis and
revised where appropriate. As at 31 December 2015, gold deposits from
customers also included approximately 4,800 (2014: 4,800) taels of gold
from certain management personnel of the Group.

)

EBRER BHREEELEEZ
PEfBRFR (88)

REBEHR  BARRRERZ RIAELRL

B4 EAERFIREIEA 2 Rk

T

26.

2015
HK$'000
TET

2014
HK$'000
TiET

91,692 135,515
— 700

91,692
349,440
58,877

136,215
428,732
58,437

500,009 623,384

& PEECHEEBHRENTEFEEELL
RIS R P IR 5NAI 326,840,000 7% T
(ZZ— U4 : 355,608,000/8 L) A%E
EETRANEE 2 REMGRIBEINLT
Be M-_Z—RF+=-A=1+—-8"
ENREEFEROEAETESER
HAITHEF R 5 2 7 TH4,879,000% T
(ZZ Mm% :6,161,00058 T) - ERHE
S EPERANERKEEE RIRFE KR
R BEERAENEFEEEBNER
RAOMBETK  WEBBERRI

* N REPRARANEREEE KRS
REHEHE -  EERARENBEFAREE
EBEERERONL TR RERER
RO ©

Hitt MRk BT EE

2015
HK$'000
TERT

27.

2014
HK$'000
THET

88,542
271,919
52,514

71,132
390,493
59,316

412,975 520,941

REERERFRETSRY - BELE
B EPRASEGEAES  REIHAT
ROEREM ESETHEER - BFPF
ENERNRERRHNBTEZATEBE
HEET o ERTEESRHER  UEEE
BEHET R-_E—hF+-_A=+—
H RFEGFeNMBREAEEETEREA
B2hF&%4,800 W (=Z—F : 4,800
M) o

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEBRBRAERRA

56/

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
2015 4 ¥R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR S AR

28.

29.

Derivative Financial Instruments 28. fT4&SmIA
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Assets BE
Bullion contracts EeBEY 5,798 =
Liabilities af
Bullion contracts FeBEY - 4,576
The bullion contracts are stated at their fair values. The above transactions BEBAARALTERIE - LR
involving derivative financial instruments are conducted with financial MTESRIAZRGNESHEE(EE
institutions with obligations rated grade “A” or above or top bullion ARETERIAIRIA L)KTERES
trading companies. BESARI#ET
As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate contractual amount of the bullion RZZE-—RF+-A=+—H E&E
contracts was HK$280,147,000 (2014: HK$325,610,000). BB EEEE 280,147,000 T
(ZZ—m%F : 325,610,000787T) °
The purpose of the above contracts entered into by the Group is to AEEY FRMANEREELASECZ R
manage the Group's bullion price exposures. Such contracts did not meet CBERER - ZERNLTTELETE
the criteria for hedge accounting. SRR R
Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings/Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 29. FERTER BHRESLLELZ
arising from Securities and Futures Broking HESTEDR
2015 2014
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
BRF = FH#A TER ROk L= TET
% %
Current wE
Portion of term loans from  REHBITAR —FR
banks due for repayment  E|HIEE 2 HHTE
within one year HIER
- unsecured - IR 0.8-2.1 2016 45244  1.6-24 2015 159,945
Current portion of bank AR—ENEBEE
loans due for repayment  ZRITERZ
within one year mENHH
- unsecured - AR 1.9-3.0 2016 531,509  1.9-3.0 2015 537,754
576,753 697,699
Non-current FRE
Non-current portion of bank 78R T Hif M 2] 4
loans due for repayment BB ZREITERZ
within a period of: FERBES :
More than one year —FEME
but less than two B ORME
years — unsecured — IR 1.9-3.0 2017 306,360 1.9-3.0 2016 376,300
More than two years MEA L
but less than five BORAF
years — unsecured o 3ivii 1.9-2.1 2018 77,037 1.9-3.0 2017 149,979
383,397 526,279
960,150 1,223,978
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29.

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings/Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings
arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued)

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable
on demand, are carried at amortized cost. None of the portion of the term
loans due for repayment after one year which contain a repayment on
demand clause and that are classified as current liabilities is expected to
be settled within one year.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's banking facilities amounted to
HK$2,861,021,000 (2014: HK$3,167,918,000), of which HK$960,150,000
(2014: HK$1,223,978,000) had been utilized at the end of the reporting
period. Certain of the banking facilities amounting to HK$780,500,000
(2014: HK$780,500,000) are secured by certain assets of the Group as
disclosed in notes 14, 15 and 20 to the financial statements.

All of the banking facilities, including bank borrowings and bullion
loans (note 30), are subject to the fulfillment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group's financial ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, certain of the Group’s term loan agreements contain clauses
which give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time, irrespective of whether the Group has complied
with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants for
all the outstanding bank borrowings and bullion loans. Accordingly, the
Group does not consider it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretion to demand repayment so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 40(a). As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, none of
the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of the bank loans at the end of the reporting period
are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar BT
United States dollar e
New Taiwan dollar ek

29.

FERTER BERMELRELEZ
T RRTER(E)

ARRTER(ERREREREZEHE
) TR BT - BERHBER —4F
RIMERARSHERERGIRST
ARBEBZHBIERERHN —FRBF

g o

N%

—E-RF+-A=+—H ' A&H
iR 1715 B % 52,861,021,00078 JT

—
| I

=T — [0 4 :3,167,918,00078 7T )
HEH KRS E A H # 960,150,000
(= T — /M F :1,223,978,000 7%

o & T iR1715 5% 780,500,000 78 7T
— T — [M 4 : 780,500,000 T ) M
REBERTERENTE 14 15 K205 E
LETEEERER

FH@#%

)

—

FERTEE(RRRITERLRELERE
E(MTNESO))¢E$Elﬁ’:}%?ﬁﬂ“tt

CEERRANESREEII U EER
TJF o AKERE R B - FTiRIEERA
?iz;cjﬂaﬁ AN AEBZETEHE
FEE SR TR 2 ERE }f
R E R AMEE 2G5 - TRAEER

on f, ==

BEETHERETREERAE

AEERFMERERBIERRECERE
EEMERHATZEHR BN - Bt
Z’-‘%ﬁ.wbﬁ/mk%ﬁn L#HZQ%EIE fETT

BAGITEERSEEZREREN - BH
$% I?/}léj]ﬁiﬂ 8 2 HE— iuﬁ %@

RHE40@) c RZF-—RFR-T—IF
T-A=1+—R AEEYEERFHED
RiERZ & -

RATBEFRRER ZEAEU T EE
REAL:

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHT FET

930,427 1,105,649

- 103,384

29,723 14,945

960,150 1,223,978
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30.

Bullion Loans

Bullion loans EBEE

- unsecured - A

- secured - BEA
Bullion trading facilities EEBRIEE
Contractual interest rate B HFIE
Original maturity RE|EH

The amounts represented borrowings from banks or top bullion trading
companies and the amounts payable are pegged with bullion prices.

As at 31 December 2015, certain of the bullion loan facilities amounting
to HK$200,000,000 (2014: HK$200,000,000) are secured by certain assets
of the Group as disclosed in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements.
Certain of the bullion loan facilities are subject to fulfillment of covenants
under the Group's banking facilities. Details of which are disclosed in note
29 to the financial statements.

Bullion loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuation of
bullion prices on bullion inventories. However, the criteria for hedge
accounting were not fully met. Bullion loans were designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as they are managed and their
performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management and investment strategy, and information
about the bullion loans is provided on that basis to the Group's key
management personnel.

The carrying amounts of the bullion loans at the end of the reporting
period are denominated in the following currencies:

AR
e

Renminbi
United States dollar

ESBfEE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz THT
705,816 897,454
89,207 133,226
795,023 1,030,680
2,768,074 2,952,687

1.3% -3.5%
1 -3 months B

1.3% - 3.8%
1 -3 months A

ZHBRERTAERESBE S ARE
B MENFRERESBERES -

R—ZE—RAF+=-_A=Z=+—8" #
7 Hﬂh&iﬁﬁ uf14&15ﬁﬁ B A
£7200,000,000% (= T —
zooooooooﬂé TIZETESZE
f& mf!éuzkil**?
%EHEF f &
Aiﬁlfﬁfﬂ;iﬁzm% ﬁ'\%ﬁéﬂm"%i&%
BisE 294 5 -

1&?%%#%5%%&&?%E1T&
PHACMEECHE - AW *ﬁ%
ﬁuﬁFEJE@ZM# BN E 1
ENRERERBREERRER W&
Eﬁ%ﬁ*@&ﬁﬁiﬁ I Eﬁ
NFEEFERB MBRE  MAMX
#E§EFEZ§MH&WW%ﬁW$E
BzEREERABRH

ZEECBEERRERRZEAENT
P& A EBAL

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
250,007 312,080
545,016 718,600
795,023 1,030,680
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31.

Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as
follows:

31. EERE

FRETHAAEREEZSNT :

Deferred tax liabilities ELEHRESE
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related
depreciation
and revaluation ~ Withholding
of properties taxes Others Total
HERHEA
BBEBTE
RYIEER FERH Hit &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET TET THET
At 1 January 2014 R=ZZ—mFE—H—H 40,856 109,378 1,285 151,519
Deferred tax charged/(credited)  ERMNERENR
to the statement of profit or (Bt \) 2 BRI
loss during the year (1,202) 11,018 (344) 9,472*
At 31 December 2014 and R-_T—mF
1 January 2015 +ZA=+—Hk
—T-RF-A—H 39,654 120,396 941 160,991
Deferred tax charged/(credited) — FRMNIBZREMNR,~
to the statement of profit or (RF AN 2 EERE
loss during the year (798) 9,717 398 9,317*
Exchange realignment BEE 3¢, B (6) = 4) (10)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZZE—AHF
recognized in the +=RA=+—H
consolidated statement of RERE W
financial position at RRKERZ
31 December 2015 IR G EREE 38,850 130,113 1,335 170,298
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Deferred Tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2014

Deferred tax credited to the statement
of profit or loss during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2014 and
1 January 2015

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
the statement of profit or loss
during the year

Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax assets
recognized in the

FEHREE

R—Z—NFE—HF—H

FARBaRRITAZEL
HIE

[E 5 AR
At
TZA=t—-BR
“T-HF%—A—H
FRREBEEFA
(F0B) 2 EEFL A
[E A%
RZZE—REF
+=ZA=+—H

consolidated statement of RERE B 7%
financial position at MR KRR 2
31 December 2015 BV EERE

* Net deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or loss during the year

amounted to HK$26,899,000 (2014: net deferred tax credited to the statement of
profit or loss amounted to HK$3,371,000) (note 11).

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$6,087,000 (2014:
HK$6,585,000), Mainland China of HK$2,845,000 (2014: HK$1,069,000)
and Macau of HK$15,748,000 (2014: Nil). The tax losses arising in Hong
Kong are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the tax losses arose, whilst those arising in
Macau and Mainland China will expire in three years and five years,
respectively, for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognized in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is
uncertain whether taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilized.

31, EEBEE)
Decelerated
tax
depreciation Others Total
HERENE Hith &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET TERT
7,180 9,806 16,986
1,586 11,257 12,843*
(11) (511) (522)
8,755 20,552 29,307
3,280 (20,862) (17,582)*
2 (317) (315)
12,037 (627) 11,410

* FARBEENGRZECHEFEA
26,899,000 87T (ZF—MF : mBE=RT
A2 TR T % % 53,371,000 7T ) (H
E11) e

REBRBEBEELEZHEERA
6,087,000/ 70 (= Z — M 4 : 6,585,000
BIL) RHPBEAMELEZHIBERES
2,845,000 7T(=Z — P04 : 1,069,000
BLT)ERBMELEZRBEEEA
15,748,000/ T(ZE—M&E: T) - B
BBESE 2 T E 18 o] R H A EH H X
SEAREBIEAR ZARERT SR
AR P & R B At E A 2 BB RS 5
AMR=FRAFAER  HETESHER
SHARRIERTIEF - AL EEETIRA
BEE—BREEZMBAR - AR ARE
BEERHERT A EARESER
e MY ERNSEERRAEERIBE
g °
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31.

32.

33.

Deferred Tax (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in the People’s Republic of China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group’s subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore
liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Share Capital

Authorized: VETE ¢
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$0.25 each

Issued and fully paid: BEITRER :
676,920,000 ordinary shares of

HK$0.25 each

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group and enabling the Group to recruit and retain
valuable employees.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may, at
its discretion, invite any employees, Executive or Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors), advisers, consultants,
shareholders of any member of the Group or such other persons from
time to time to be an eligible person to whom share options will be
granted as an incentive to attract and retain them for their contributions
to the business development of the Group. The Scheme was approved and
adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 7 December 2010 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the maximum
number of shares available for issue was 67,692,000, representing 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue.

676,920,000 I% 5 AR E &
0258z L@k

31.

32.

1,000,000,000 % & i% E &
0.258 T2 L@

33.

EEDIR ()

RERBECEMSRZE - RPEARIR
BRY 2 INERECERIINEREERS
TR B AR 10% BIRTBIRS - LR E M
T NF-A—HBEX TEAR
—EEHET-A=+—HEZHEN - m
PR A RN EEFTE R AR A
U E - BT @ AREM TEIR B R
Ko AKERFEAR LB 2
BRAEIME  ERHEAE5%H10% - A
It AEEEEERZSNHEARLR
BB ARIR-_EENF—A—H
REEZ&MNDIR R BHFIER

ARRAERRIKE 2 BB EY LG
Mo

e
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
250,000 250,000
169,230 169,230
LG HE
ARAElRA AR R 8 ([t -

RTRAAER2BEHNAKEEL 2 A/
BTREBREE  UARSAKERBEL
HUASBAREECES -

BREZEZHE  ARRAESS AT
HEBFTMEES ATEFLFNTE
Z(BRBUFATES)  BFH - &F
A REBEMKE AR ZBREZEFE
ATREERAL  EEAIERER
& ERRARSHAREEBRRELE
BRI R 5| e B 1R 2 R - AT EIR
" -TFE+ - AL HERARRREAE
RE@ - BRIFZE EIWATTIORKIERT
BRI EZ AR TFRBR -

MR SR EERZE R BT
RPE B LR A67,692,000% @ HER
AAREBTRDZ10% °
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33.

34,

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted under the Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company to each participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of total shares of the Company in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period commencing on such date on or after the
date on which the option is granted as the Directors may determine in
granting the option and expiring at the close of business on such date as
the Directors may determine in granting the option but in any event shall
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of
grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Directors
provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of
the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Since the adoption of the Scheme, no share options have been offered
and/or granted.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 40 and 41 of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-invested
enterprises and Sino-foreign equity joint ventures, a portion of the profits
of the Group's subsidiaries which are established in the People’s Republic
of China has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as to
use.

33.

34.

fERR st 8 (&)

BR2EEEEMT _EAN(EERE
BEREERL)  RELFERARAUE
fa] B At B A Bt 2V R 2 B IUHE T IATT 2
B BT REETZBROEE LRAE
BEARREETRN AL 1% °

BRETREZBIGIIRE  RES
ROBIER  RERLZBREE R
HRBFRRTE BEEEERLBRE
FEERE 2 B IS AR R ER
PMEMBERT - MR EBREE B (AR
HERHEREROER  MRBERERD
BEX)EFTITBATE -

BREERARIELBREZRN - &
ARREBHZAE=TAR(BERE
ENER)RIEMZEN - REXRH
B HE 2 RA0R - ZAES1.00087T

BRECTEENHESET  HETE
BRAZLRUTERE : () ARARKRNR
EHRMEBRZ NG RRERM BT
B ()VARERHRERBHRHASE
RHAEBRRAERRERMINZFY
WmiE : Ri)AREERKNCEE -

BERMZEIR - ARRALERER X
R E

i

AEEZ FRERFAR LFEZEE
FNMBREFIORM A GAERE
BRA

BEERRZIARECERPINGER
ERAIZEEERRER - REBRTPE
ARAMBKZZ MBAR 2B ENE
BRAREBIRHHES -
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35.

Operating Lease Arrangements

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and retail shops
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for these properties
and shops are negotiated for terms ranging from one to six years.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due
as follows:

Within one year —&FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
After five years

AR

In addition to the minimum future rental payments disclosed above,
the Group has commitments to pay contingent rents based on a
proportion of turnover for certain leased retail shops. Contingent
rents are not included in the above commitments as it is not
possible to estimate the amounts which may be payable.

Certain of these leases have escalation clauses and renewal rights.

35. REHNZH

(a)

“ERF ERMEEREN

(b)

“ERF ARMEEREN

HEA

AEBNKERORHFHLERE
WME ) LEHAT RS
R—E=F - BOGKRR—RERE
EXMRERE MREERT ISR
BEEHESHE -

WZE—RFE+-A=+—8 &
SERERRITE T RE 2L
M4 ZFHA  ARREHAEE
WK EEEIT

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET
10,358 7,224
5,507 3,294
15,865 10,518
EEA

AEBNREHEOZPAMEE T
RENERTEER - WEMER
BRI R E AR -

R_Z—RE+-_A=+—8"
AEERTAIHELERL &
IHA - ARZEAEERMTESE
W

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
881,953 871,876
799,823 1,267,907
- 23,850
1,681,776 2,163,633

Br EXRE 2 R A RBERNMK
o AEEEETARNTER
BEAREREEEO AL IR
Sk AME o MR A AETAE AT A
TAMEHE AR E A
PA e o

ZEE TR FHRERRED
1o
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36.

37.

Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 35(b)

36, &IE

BR L5t B 5 35(b) 5 80 A8 = A 4

above, the Group had the following capital commitments in respect of O REBRBERREATEBWE
property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period: HESE N ikl 7 B ANEIE ¢

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTET FET

Contracted, but not provided for BEE] - BAREE 5,024 2,248

Connected and Related Party Transactions 37. BEALRS
(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in (a) [sfag/\$ﬁ7ﬁx#&m/\m4g YEEE

these financial statements, the Group had the following material

BRI ARERFNERRE

transactions with connected and/or related parties during the year g)\igﬁﬁ%@ngﬁ AN
at mutually agreed terms: BEARS:
Nature of transactions Relationship 2015 2014
REME 3 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Purchases of raw materials A non- controllmg shareholder of
a subsid |a_r
BERME —RIMBR A2 IEERRR - 8,290*
Rental expenses for the lease of a retail Certain Directors of the Company
shop who have beneficial interests in
the property
HETEEH HEMAX ARAIETEFRZNERES
EnlEm 3,750 3,120
Rental expenses for the lease of quarters Related companies in which certain
of the Company’s Directors Directors of the Company have
beneficial interests o
MEEEEE2EEAX /N 76??%%% Btk
P i} 960 840
Consultancy expenses for the provision A related company in which family
of image consultancy services to the members of a Director of the
rou& Company have beneficial interests
AEEREY R ER RS BREFX ARA)— %é%%ﬁ%ﬁk,%ﬁﬁm&é
BZHER 436 1,234

Shanghai Jinghua Diamond & Jewellery Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Jinghua”) is a

subsidiary of the non-controlling shareholder of Chow Sang Sang Jewellery
(Shandong) Co., Ltd. (“CSS Shandong”), a subsidiary of the Group during

2014.

Total purchases from Shanghai Jinghua for the period from 1 January

2014 to 4 June 2014 amounted to HK$8,290,000. The Group completed
the acquisition of the remaining 30% equity interest in CSS Shandong,
Shanghai Jinghua ceased to be a connected person of the Group and
transactions with Shanghai Jinghua were no longer as connected

transactions of the Group thereafter.

All of the above related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The above transactions are exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’

R-F—WF  LEREHRE
RAB(TLERE)RAEEZ
MEBARBEERE(LR)ER
AE([AEELR]) 2 FZBRE
RZMBAR

H-_F-NF-—A-—RE_%F

EEAHEB$WWLE?§
PRIEAE%E 8,290,000 BT « A%
BERKEREEELRZHT
30% MR FERETEATE
BBEAL AUEEERE
ZRGBRIBRERAERELZ
BERS

tRFFEBEALR ZIMER L
MRNETMAZREZHER
BR e FiR SIRE EmEA
FBUUAIKRERERTR  FEE

approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

7 RERBIBERAEZHE
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37.

38.

Connected and Related Party Transactions (continued)
(b) Emoluments of key management personnel of the Group

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid and payable to key
management personnel during the year, including the amounts paid
and payable to the Company’s Executive Directors, is as follows:

Fees e

Salaries and allowances He K2R
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable BN RERNEIE
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFIEIMER

Further details of Directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to
the financial statements.

Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at

TE4T

37. BEALXRZ(#E)
(b) FEEXEEBEAEHS

FRENRENEZEEEARZMH
SRE BRECNRENARFH
TEEFZe® #IWT

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
1,113 1,188
32,646 32,128
9,009 11,335
1,173 1,162
43,941 45,813

EEfe —SHEBIRHMBRSE
HizES o

38. REMNSBMZEMIA
REEHMR KB zeRTAKEE

the end of the reporting period are as follows: PN
2015 —Z-EF
Financial assets BEE
Financial
assets at fair
value through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
BAYERE
AIEEEZ
HREE =794 AEEE
- BEEE FE WL BR X BMKEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET FTEx
Other assets Hi&E - 239,359 - 239,359
Available-for-sale investments AN ERE - - 824,959 824,959
Accounts receivable JEUTBR 5K - 775,000 - 775,000
Receivables arising from EHRBEREEEL
securities and futures broking U BR X - 187,018 - 187,018
Financial assets included in BEERNRE  &Re
prepayments, deposits and R E A AR 2
other receivables HIBEE - 66,463 - 66,463
Investments at fair value BATEECRBEZ
through profit or loss ®& 36,686 - - 36,686
Derivative financial instruments ~ #T44$FTE 5,798 - - 5,798
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEFARSE - 390,680 - 390,680
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkZERRES - 1,620,982 - 1,620,982
42,484 3,279,502 824,959 4,146,945
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Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

2015

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Bullion loans

2014

Financial assets

Other assets
Available-for-sale investments
Accounts receivable
Receivables arising from
securities and futures broking
Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Cash held on behalf of clients
Cash and cash equivalents

—§-5%
HHaE

eI R
BrRHEREEL L
FETBR K
BREEMEBNERT R
[EFTIRA MBRE
ARRITER

ETBER

—E—-F

MBEE

Hiw&E
AfHERE
JEURR X
ArhERLELZ
R
BEEBRMNRER B
B EM YR 2
BHEE
BRAFEERERBLZ
KRE
REFRERS
RekERAAE

38. RERSEZERMIA(H)

Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

BAVEETEREZHBAE

Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortized
recognition trading cost Total
AR R REBHERAN
EERLER RIFEE KReUBEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT THET
- - 86,864 86,864
- - 413,145 413,145
- - 225,728 225,728
- - 960,150 960,150
795,023 - - 795,023
795,023 - 1,685,887 2,480,910
Financial
assets at fair
value through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
RAFEE
AIEREL \ ‘
B EE TR AL e
- FEEE JEUS BR 7K HBEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TET
- 234,866 - 234,866
- - 869,067 869,067
- 718,745 - 718,745
= 247,997 = 247,997
- 52,267 - 52,267
13,388 - - 13,388
= 424,968 = 424,968
- 1,008,636 - 1,008,636
13,388 2,687,479 869,067 3,569,934
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38.

39.

Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

38.

BERS BRI A(H)

2014 —E_mE
Financial liabilities g S =N
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
BRATBEIEREHEEE
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortized
recognition trading cost Total
RAIR TR 3 [IRUN
HEE RULEER HIFEE EReUMBat At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET TET FET
Accounts payable FE T BRFR - = 136,215 136,215
Payables arising from securities ~ FHMBEELELE S
and futures broking FEfTER K - - 487,169 487,169
Financial liabilities included in BEEAMENERRK
other payables and accruals [EETIER 2 M B E = = 241,159 241,159
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 4@ T A - 4,576 - 4,576
Interest-bearing bank TERITER
borrowings - - 1,223,978 1,223,978
Bullion loans EvBRE 1,030,680 - - 1,030,680
1,030,680 4,576 2,088,521 3,123,777
Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments 39. 2RIBZATFEERATEEER

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the Group's
financial assets and liabilities approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of accounts receivable,
receivables arising from securities and futures broking, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, cash held on
behalf of clients, cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, payables
arising from securities and futures broking, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, amounts due from subsidiaries and
bank borrowings due for repayment within one year approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

RBERR  AEEHBEERAELZ
EEEEEAFEEES -

TEECFEREES  EFRBELL
EEZEUBER - B2 EBRNRA B
FEMEKERCMBEE  REPHA
Re RERFRRE  BAER &5
FEREEL ERNERS  B3EEM
ENRFREIRE 2HEAE  HBL
ARFRER—FREREEZRITER
ZAFEERARDERS  TEANZ
FTARNERREE -
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&),

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments
(continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of other assets and bank borrowings due for repayment
after one year approximate to their carrying amounts, which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank borrowings, bullion loans and other borrowings as at 31
December 2015 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair value of the unlisted available-for-sale equity investment
stated at fair value has been estimated using the income capitalization
method. The valuation requires the management to make estimate about
the capitalization rates. The management believes that the estimated
fair value resulting from the valuation technique, which is recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related change
in fair value, which is recorded in other comprehensive income, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at the end of
the reporting period.

The fair value of bullion loans is based on open market prices of bullion.

As at 31 December 2015, certain unlisted equity investments with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$260,000 (2014: HK$260,000) were
stated at cost because there is a wide range of possible fair value
measurements so that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with various
counterparties, principally financial institutions with Grade “A” or above
or top bullion trading companies. As at 31 December 2015, derivative
financial instruments represented bullion contracts which are measured
based on bullion market prices. The carrying amounts of bullion contracts
are the same as their fair values.

39.

TRIAZAVEERAVEESR(E)

UBEERBRZATEE  KRTRAK
BREE  DUEHTEBRNENR ST X
TAARB SBAR - At AT EER
ERTATIAERRB :

HEERBR —FRIMEREZRITE
FZAFHEEEEERERS - BRKE
ENRBARELGR  FERRKAT
A TAZRBRERNKRFTRER
HMARRAERE - AKBR_T—1F
T-A=+T—RARHBRTENR BB
&8 RE AR $ 2 T E 4 A1
AYRERX -

LN ERE 2 A FEETRETSHRE
FE - BRAFEEIRZIFLTAHEE
B RE 2 D FEERBVAER R
fEHEE - ZEMEEREREHELSY
HRER A - ERER AR MERME
2 B D FEER NGRS BERRKRT
EREEATEEEHEREMEEKE
iR YBAE  RARNBSHRREE
ZfEfE -

RZE—RE+-A=1+—8 AN
Az AFEBENESHAEERSZ  EFR
AEATSEMSEATEE  HERE
{& 260,000 75.( = ZF — P04 : 260,000 75
TO)Z & T IELETRABIRE THIRRATER

AEBENRZRGHFAILITE SR
TE RZUFIERIAIGIALEZ
THRBELERESBES R R
“E-RFFTRA=+—H {744 H
TARESBAN NEESBWS
BRF7E - BEEBANCREERERT
BEMAR -
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39.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable input to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis:

As at 31 December 2015
R-E-AF+=-A=+-—H

Unlisted available-for-sale
equity investment

I Al S AR
RE

As at 31 December 2014
R-—2-NFE+=A=+—H

Unlisted available-for-sale
equity investment

I EmA g e
KRE

Valuation
technique

fhER M

Income
capitalization
method

BWABEARALE

Income
capitalization
method

WABALE

Significant
unobservable
input
BEXREUBR
Y&

Capitalization
rate

ERr®

Capitalization
rate

BAMLi R

39. SRIAZAVEERAFEESH(E)

UTRERTAMEZEREUNBEIE
MEERELHBREN -

4.5% to
5.5%

4.5%F
5.5%

4.5% to
5.5%

45%%
5.5%

Sensitivity of the
input to fair value
HEH N FEE
ZHRBE

1% increase/ decrease in
capitalization rate would
result in decrease/
increase in fair value by
HK$184,000
ER{LEREM HD 1%
BERATLEERD
1#10184,000 & T

1% increase/ decrease in
capitalization rate would
result in decrease/
increase in fair value by
HK$183,000
BRI RE I, WD 1%
BEUAFEERD,
#40183,00078 7T
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39.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's financial instruments.

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2015

Available-for-sale investments:
Equity investments

Investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 December 2014

Available-for-sale investments:
Equity investments

Investments at fair value
through profit or loss

R-®—Ef
+=A=t-

AEHERE -
BHILE

BATEERTE
BB A

TESRMTA

R=—Z— lfﬁ
+=—h=

AJHHERE -

B R E
BAYEERE

BEZRE

39. SRIAZAVEERAFEESH(E)

AFEEER

TREJAKEERTAZR

24 -

BAVEEMECEE

Fair value measurement using

RAUTHE 2 AP EETE

FEEHE

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year are

as follows:

Unlisted available-for-sale investments

At 1 January

Total gain/(loss) recognized in other

comprehensive income

At 31 December

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TERBWS BEAATEE EBEAEUEBR
HE - -
(#&B1—) (#&B1=) (/A=) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FTHERT TAET TAT
806,268 - 18,431 824,699
36,686 - - 36,686
- 5,798 - 5,798
842,954 5,798 18,431 867,183
850,516 - 18,291 868,807
13,388 - - 13,388
863,904 - 18,291 882,195
FAFRN=2 R FEBEFTELFHMOT
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
FLEmAHHERE
n—A—H 18,291 18,480
H\Eﬂﬂiﬁﬂﬁz EPﬁEmZ
ki (B8 8% 140 (189)
R+ZA=+—8 18,431 18,291
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39.

40.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

39.

AFEEER(E)
BRAVEEHEZRE

Fair value measurement using

TRIAZAVEERAVEESR(E)

RAUTHE 2 APEETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERT S EARUBE BAHUBE
HRE i i .
(& B1—) (#ZBI=) (&% B1=) At
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FTET FEx FEx FEx
As at 31 December 2015 R-E—FE
+=A=+
Bullion loans ExBREE 795,023 - - 795,023
As at 31 December 2014 R-Z—OF
+=B=+—H
Bullion loans EeBEE 1,030,680 - - 1,030,680
Derivative financial instruments  {T4A& R T A = 4,576 = 4,576
1,030,680 4,576 - 1,035,256
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements iwﬁﬁ%ﬁgﬁﬁﬁkﬁ Z A= R AR
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for ZEHEATEEFEER - TEBA
both financial assets and financial liabilities. EEHRRI= o
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 4. HBEREBEERBE
(a) Financial risk factors (a) HHEBEZ

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank
borrowings, and cash and bank deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts receivable and accounts payable, which arise directly from
its operations.

The Group’s overall risk management policies focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by management under the policies
approved by the Board and it identifies, evaluates and monitors
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating
units.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
equity price risk and commodity price risk. The Board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarized below.

AEEZTEeMIABRERTE
FEB S RRTFER - WESRT
BT ERARNRAEEZEKE
SBE - AEEBETHMMBE
ENAE TBREELER
110 e R e A BR 3K

AEBERBRAREERRHE S
BT 5 2 BEATRANE - WS SORE
¥T$%lﬁﬂ%i€fﬂ%ﬁkzx’%ﬁ7ﬁ‘w
FE -AREETTHEEERESE

$§TM?ZBZ§@;/" &2 fE &
AEBZEEENETAE &

Bl FHERERABER

AEEeRmTIAREEZ FEEAR
i%ﬂ’?ﬂlﬂ’* CHNERRE - FEE
M ) //\L@Jﬁ%ﬂﬁ HX{/JNEW’_UZM
KEmBHEEAR EFZSEHLR
EIXHAEESBLERR 2
B e
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40.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk due to potential changes
in interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities.
Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly loans to margin clients
whereas interest-bearing financial liabilities are primarily bank
borrowings with primarily floating interest rates which expose the

Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

For Hong Kong dollar floating-rate borrowings, assuming that
the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year, a 50-basis point
increase/decrease in interest rates at 31 December 2015 and 2014
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by
HK$3,902,000 and HK$4,112,000, respectively. For United States
dollar floating-rate borrowings, a 50-basis point increase/decrease in
interest rates at 31 December 2014 would have decreased/increased
the Group's profit before tax by HK$517,000. The sensitivity to the
interest rate used is considered reasonable, with all other variables

held constant.

The Group's interest rate risk exposure also arises from margin
financing and other lending activities. The Group has the legal
capacity to quickly recall such loans or re-price its loans to an
appropriate level. A 50 basis-point increase/decrease in interest rates
at 31 December 2015 and 2014 would have increased/decreased
the Group's profit before tax by HK$668,000 and HK$821,000
respectively. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of assets
carried at the end of the reporting period was carried for the whole
year. The sensitivity to interest rate used is considered reasonable,

with all other variables held constant.

The Group's policy is to obtain the most favorable interest rates
available without increasing its foreign currency exposures. In
addition, the Group monitors the level of interest rate exposure and

considers utilizing hedging instruments should the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising from
sales and purchases by operating units in currencies other than
the units’ functional currency. Management conducted periodical
review of exposures and requirements of various currencies, and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures should
the need arise. Management considers that the Group’s exposure to

foreign currency risk is not significant.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar, Renminbi and United States dollar. Currency risk is
managed by partly financing non-Hong Kong dollar assets with

loans denominated in the relevant currencies.

40. HHEBREERERBEE)

(a)

MREBREE ()

VI3
AEER B BEERARZT
REEEHMAZNERR - 58
WBEEIZRAFREFEN M
ARMBEEIERRITEN T
ERIBHHRGR - GEAREEH
RASREMNZEMR

IBITEEFIERERME  BRER
REMARERZABEBEINE
BEBER FIER-_ZT—AEFR
—E-ME+-F=+—RAN/
A S0 EEEL - 5 R/
7N £ B R B A & 73,902,000 7T
%4,112,000% T % E T ZH
FEEZME  FIER=_Z—NF
+=-A=1+—R#En 50 EE
B R EINAE BB AR
517,000 7T © FEFTH A S84
BAEZBERT  AEBRBHA
AFI&z GRS TIBAE

REEZFERRBRITREFREE
REMETES  AEBEEE
T 8E 1 Bk BBy W o) 5 B B RS
B EERZEHEKE - AR
“E-RFER_T—NF+=A
=+—A%N/ B0 EE
2B, R D Ak BB AR
#668,000% 7T 12 821,000 7T °
A ERER R EBARR 2 E
ESBIRERFENEMES
EHEEMEHERTE 2ER
T AEBERBEFTRAFIE 2 8
ETBEE -

AEB 2 BRTIETE MEINER
BZBERTFREEMNZAE -
BESh + 7S B BE 2R A oK L B A R K
¥ RRNEBEREERBEHT
Ao

SMESR

AEBEZXHEBEREIEREE
BEMAENEEB N2 BEE
TZEE - EBRERTRERHORE
BEFEEETERR  TRFE
B ZBENPEAINER R - EIEE
RBRARBERNINERBRIL TEX

AEBEZBERBBIENET
ARBERETREM - EEINE
B ERAINEER BT LR
BREETHROBE -
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40.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The accounts receivable and receivables arising from securities
and futures broking represent the Group’s major exposure to
the credit risk arising from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group's retail sales on jewellery are usually transacted on a cash
basis, via popular credit cards or through reputable and dispersed
department stores. The Group’s credit sales to wholesale customers
are generally on credit terms within 60 days. The Group has no
significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to its jewellery
retail business as it has a large number of diversified customers.
For accounts receivable arising from the wholesale of diamonds
and precious metals, the Group trades only with recognized
and creditworthy third parties and bullion banks. The Group's
receivables from margin clients arising from the ordinary course
of business of dealing in securities are secured by the underlying
pledged securities. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has its credit control policy
to minimize the credit risk. In addition, all receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and overdue balances are followed
up by senior management. Accordingly, the Group's exposure to

bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which mainly
comprise cash and cash equivalents, cash held on behalf of
clients, other assets, deposits and other receivables, and derivative
financial instruments, arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from accounts receivable and receivables arising
from securities and futures broking are disclosed in note 22 to the

financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash
flows. The responsibility of the Group’s treasury department is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of banking facilities in order to meet its liquidity
requirements both in the short term and long term. The Group
maintains significant flexibility to respond to opportunities and
events by ensuring that committed credit lines are available. All
debts of the Group as at 31 December 2015 would mature within

three years.

40. HHEBREERERBEE)

(a)

MR EREE ()

EEmE
BURRARESRRERLEEZ
KRR TI AR B BN %ﬁ?K
BAMELZEREERAR &%
RBRENEGS MW#£%¢%%
%%é§2$ﬁﬁ°$%gz%§
TEHERFURS  BBENRE
BRAEBEBRIRIB AL
DAETRS ARERREERP
ETZEEHE-RRATARZ
RREET - AN ETERBH
BREDHEP  HULBEEKRES

ZEERR - HEONESBHE
EA 2 RKER KE@@E%%

RBEBEELE=EREBHENTX
5 AEERBABERBRESE
BEAZERERAREPERIAERH
BERESELER - AREHAY
B W B S i B AR AR Iﬂﬁh
EEHERAREEERR - It
N PR MR AR KA %ﬂxﬁﬁ?
£ BREHESREEAER
# o A AREZRRRBRY A
BReo

AEBEMPBEE  TREER
eRhERAE  KEPHARST
HEE - e hEMRYEER K
TESRTI A HEERBELS
RGHFAEK  Mx=ERES
RitET A ZBREE -

AREBAT 2 ZE R KR
K5 MBS E L 2 RIRR
EX BREERRZE—FEL
BHRNMBREME 22 ARE -

B E TR
REEERFVHEBRERERERS
REBAEBRBRAKE AR
SEBEEREESREMRERE
BEZHE ASBEHMBHMNE
TRERERBNTEERESZE
B R 2 FESTE - RS
EHEORRAREHESHK - &
SEEREREE DA 2B
EEHEE  #FRBESEARE
ERREF - NZE-AF+=A
=+—R - AEEMEREHR=
FREH o
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40. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

40. HHEBREERERBEE)

(a) MERBER(E)
nBET @G (E)

RBEHR - AEBZHBARR
ERTAVERIT R R B 2 B HE

payments, is as follows: AT ¢
2015 —Z-5F
No fixed
terms of 1 year or
repayment/ less but 5 years or
repayable 3 months over less but
on demand or less 3 months over 1 year Undated Total
EEE
B A =@A Z=@EAUL —FHE
REREE RUT Z2-f ZEE EHIR ast
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TERT THET THERT THET THERT
Accounts payable  E{TER 22,843 64,021 - - - 86,864
Payables arising BEHRREERL
from securities EEZER
and futures 8RN
broking 385,716 27,429 - - - 413,145
Financial liabilities 157 E A fE
included in other  BEF BT
payables and BB 28
accruals afE 92,489 133,239 - - - 225,728
Term loans subject & ZKEZ K
to repayment on  ZEHIERK
demand clause 45,244 - - - - 45,244
Other interest- Hitnst BRIT
bearing bank EX
borrowings - 152,189 393,129 388,759 - 934,077
Bullion loans BERBREE - 795,023 - - - 795,023
546,292 1,171,901 393,129 388,759 - 2,500,081
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40.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

2014 —E-mEF

Accounts payable  FERTERFR

Payables arising  #HRHAELL
from securities EEZEN
and futures BRAX
broking

Financial liabilities 81 & 7£ E {t fE 1+
included in other  BEZ & &=t
payables and BB 28
accruals BfE

Derivative financial $T4£& T A
instruments
Term loans subject ZEREE KR

to repaymenton  ZEHEK
demand clause

Other interest- Eat S R1T
bearing bank B
borrowings

Bullion loans EcBREE

Equity price risk

40. HHEBREERERBEE)

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The fair values of these listed
equity investments are affected by market forces and other factors.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as available-for-sale investments (note
20) and trading equity investments (note 24) as at 31 December
2015. The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The majority of the listed equity investments are

held for non-trading purposes.

() HBEBERER)
HHELER(E)
No fixed
terms of
repayment/ 1 year or 5 years or
repayable 3 months  less but over less but
on demand or less 3 months over 1 year Undated Total
EEE
BEE/ A =fEA “EAMRE —ENE
RERER FT E-F FRE BHR as
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET THER TR TR TR
16,730 119,485 - - = 136,215
414,045 73,124 - - - 487,169
102,062 139,097 = = = 241,159
- - - - 4,576 4,576
159,945 = = = = 159,945
- 165,970 390,317 536,260 - 1,092,547
- 1,030,680 - - - 1,030,680
692,782 1,528,356 390,317 536,260 4,576 3,152,291
ROERERE
B ERERERNES A FE
B R 15 35 BUK T R M5 3 5 1

BEHREZEHmH T®2BR - HE
EBROREZDATFEBESTS
ﬁ%&ﬁfﬁl%%% AEBR
—HAE+-A=t+—B®LE
%TM&%&QHHHM&EE
B A3 428 (P 55 24) 2 {8 Bl AR 17 #%
ERMAZ RO ERRR - AEE
2 ETTRERBR LT - RS
HIRFTRMIEBRTE - KD LK
MEREDRBEFBEERR
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40.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, the impact with respect to the available-
for-sale equity investments is deemed to be on the investment
revaluation reserve and no account is given for factors such as
impairment which might impact on the statement of profit or loss.

2015 ZE-IfF

Investments listed in Hong Kong: RESEMZEE :
Available-for-sale s
Held-for-trading FHEEE

2014 —E2-F

Investments listed in Hong Kong: RESEMZEE :
Available-for-sale e
Held-for-trading BIEEE

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including bullion
products. The bullion market is influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline
in prices of bullion could adversely affect the Group's financial
performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk, the
Group uses bullion loans as well as derivative financial instruments,
such as bullion contracts to reduce its exposure to fluctuation in the
bullion price on bullion inventory. The bullion price exposures are
monitored by the management.

For the bullion loans and bullion contracts, assuming that the
amount outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year, a 10% increase/decrease in
market prices of bullion at 31 December 2015 and 2014 would
have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by
HK$112,735,000 and HK$136,087,000 respectively. The sensitivity
to the market prices of bullion used is considered reasonable, with
all other variables held constant. This information has not taken
into account potential financial impact on other financial statement
line items.

40.
(a)

Carrying
amount
of equity

investments

BRHREZ
REE
HK$"000
TR

806,268
36,686

850,516
13,388

B EREERERIEK (&)

MR EREE ()

R EREERE (&)

TRERERHERR 2 REE
B RAEEMEHRIE RFAL
AHRAEYENHRNRERTER
B10% B 2 HRE - AN
MmE - Wb ERNRE G
FERGERHREERFHFBERT
2 AYSEFNRESTIEYER

Increase/
decrease Increase/
in profit decrease
before tax in equity
BRBLATRF M
#n,w L
HK$'000 HK$’000
THERT THERT
- 80,627
3,669 -
- 85,052
1,339 -

Ban (B 15 /25

AEERFHERE  BRESE
Em- E2BTHXERARMLE
HEHRERTE - E2BERAK
I REH AN SR B 2 B IR BB AR T 7
FE - BREAREREAR A%
EEREcBEENRERERD
ENEemMIA  URAEESEE
BEDHHELBFE ABALE -
EREREERESBERZABRA
i o

RELEBEENRELEAAMS -
BREARBERRERZEED
BEFEHER EcBEME
“E-RER-_ZE-NF+=A
ZTF—HEN/RDI10%: B
B D /38 N7 £ B B i A i
112,735,0007% 7T K 136,087,000
BT EMEHMBESERETEY
BRT  AEERAHFTRELE
MBZERENBARE - &R
EEEHEMPEREER 2EE
BITSRAE -
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40.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(b) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and

to enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and business
strategies. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, raise and repay
debts or issue new shares. The Group is required to comply with
certain externally imposed capital requirements set out in certain
of its banking facility agreements. Additionally, certain subsidiaries
engaged in securities and futures dealing and broking, which are
regulated entities under the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong (“SFC"), and a subsidiary which is a member of the
CGSE, are required to comply with respective minimum capital
requirements imposed by the SFC and the CGSE. During the two
years, these subsidiaries complied with respective minimum capital
requirements imposed by the SFC and the CGSE. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
borrowings to total equity. Total borrowings include interest-
bearing bank borrowings and bullion loans. Total equity comprises
all components of equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company. The Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at
a reasonable level. The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting

periods were as follows:

Total borrowings BEE
Total equity b
Gearing ratio ERBEEEK

40. HHEBREERERBEE)

(b)

BEXER

AEBEAER 2 TZABRRE
AEBRBELERXK 8 L
FREZEAL X  UHHEER
RIEMAR 2 BEE

REBIRCEAR N R ERK R 2 &
HEBEEARNERE  UHHAED
AR BRI FEBREAREE - K
SETEARRRIRG KRS
BNk EEBEIETHR o AE
BAETHEETRITBE HRATE
ZETINMEBARBTE « fHh - BT
MBARKREEARPEEERE
%%%Iﬁ?% A NIESKE
S([BESMEIXR
CAR—RHWBA Tﬁiﬁ
%ZE,\ % ERRAEE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁmZE%
ﬁ§$ﬁm c REZMEFEERA -
ZENBLARETHRESGRERE
BB SEERIKEENETE
HEZT-AFK-_TWF+_HA
=+ HLEFE  RAEEEREAR
ZBZ - BURS AR EEL ) o

§m FI]I&

’Emﬂ e i S e
B g ‘m} ><1/

v

AEEREXRBBELXR(AEREE
ng%”)#%§$om1§
BERBRTEFRACBEE

%m@%$A7%ﬁhﬁAfﬁﬁ
BZMBBD o REBZBRE RS
BRBRLRERESIKE - 1
WERRZERABLEMT

fmfﬁ\ﬂﬂ}

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
1,755,173 2,254,658
9,077,915 8,646,733
19.3% 26.1%
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41. Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following tables set out details of financial instruments subject to
offsetting at the end of the reporting periods.

Assets BE

Accounts receivable  EMiERS:

Receivables arising from &% ki §#E 4
securities and futures 4 2 I
broking R

Liabilities &

Accounts payable FEfER
Payables arising from  EFHRHAEEL
securities and futures  E4£ 7 FEf

broking R

41. EHRBEERNBEE
TREFRBERRIEHEAORZERT
4
2015
Gross
amounts of Net amounts
recognized of financial
financial assets Related amounts not set off in
liabilities set presented the consolidated statement of
Gross off in the in the financial position
amounts of consolidated consolidated FERGEIBRRRSR
recognized statement statement BHEzEBLE
financial of financial of financial Financial ~ Cash collateral
assets position position instruments pledged Net amount
REEEETE RERETH
HRR R
BER B#HERA 2R B 2EH
BREELE BBaEAE BERE SRIA BEEAR B8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
777,193 (2,793) 775,000 - - 775,000
248,203 (61,185) 187,018 - - 187,018
1,025,996 (63,978) 962,018 - - 962,018
Gross
amounts of Net amounts
recognized of financial
financial liabilities Related amounts not set off in
assets set presented the consolidated statement of
Gross off in the in the financial position
amounts of consolidated consolidated RERGREBMRRRT
recognized  statement of statement ik R
financial financial of financial Financial ~ Cash collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
RERREH RGEEH
Ve DV EL
BER i AR B WAL BEA
IRERER REESR SR ¢RIA REERT BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TR TR TRR TARL TARL
89,657 (2,793) 86,864 - - 86,864
474,330 (61,185) 413,145 - - 413,145
563,987 (63,978) 500,009 - - 500,009
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41. Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued) 41. EHEMBEERIBAEE)
2014
Gross
amounts of Net amounts
recognized of financial
financial assets Related amounts not set off in
liabilities set presented the consolidated statement of
Gross off in the in the financial position
amounts of consolidated consolidated RERGERBRRET
recognized statement statement BizEEeR
financial of financial of financial Financial Cash collateral
assets position position instruments pledged Net amount
RERR 8% iRk b
xS WAz
R Rz ERR 2R HH Rk
HHAEES WHaReE BEFH ERIA Reffm et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T BT TEL FHT THET
Assets 43
Accounts receivable EWED 718,921 (176) 718,745 = = 718,745
Receivables arising from &% R HGEL
securities and futures  EEZEW
broking i 346,427 (98,430) 247,997 - - 247,997
1,065,348 (98,606) 966,742 = - 966,742
Gross
amounts of Net amounts
recognized of financial
financial liabilities Related amounts not set off in
assets set presented the consolidated statement of
Gross off in the in the financial position
amounts of consolidated consolidated RERGERBRR R
recognized statement statement BB E
financial of financial of financial Financial Cash collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
Nt SN
RAERH RART
BH#R Bz EHR WA BEA
HBaReE KAELER AEEH SRTH BeERG et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T THAL THAL THL THx
Liabilities a8
Accounts payable L 136,391 (176) 136,215 - = 136,215
Payables arising from ~ EHRHELL
securities and futures 4 7 A
broking R 585,599 (98,430) 487,169 - - 487,169
721,990 (98,606) 623,384 - - 623,384
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42.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

42, ELQTRMBEMRRE
BBARRRRAREBRR 2 HBRRAEKZ

the end of the reporting period is as follows: BRI
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N RENGIPA 3 3,347,731 3,260,549
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments T FRIE 290 290
Tax recoverable B EE A - 1
Cash and cash equivalents RekERE S 6,329 3,801
Total current assets BREEE 6,619 4,092
CURRENT LIABILITIES wEAE
Other payables and accruals HAh AR R R EETIE B 6,975 5,588
Tax payable eI IR 10 -
Total current liabilities BRBAE 6,985 5,588
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEFE (366) (1,496)
Net assets BERE 3,347,365 3,259,053
EQUITY B
Issued capital BETRA 169,230 169,230
Reserves (note) {8 (Fft =5) 3,178,135 3,089,823
Total equity R 3,347,365 3,259,053
Vincent CHOW Wing Shing  EXK& Winston CHOW Wun Sing AR
Director 55 Director o
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42,

43.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company (continued) 42. ARQTHBEMRRE(E)
Note: BiaE
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: ARRIREEZHENT
Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus profits Total
R R E BB R &5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FTExT FTEx FTERT
At 1 January 2014 RZZ—mF—A—H 1,051,502 975,582 1,028,190 3,055,274
Profit and total comprehensive R H & 2 HE U
income for the year Rk - = 481,316 481,316
Dividends declared and paid FAEREBMRE
during the year = = (446,767) (446,767)
At 31 December 2014 and RZT—MF
1 January 2015 +-A=+—HEK
—T—hF—A—H 1,051,502 975,582 1,062,739 3,089,823
Profit and total comprehensive SR H R 2 EWE
income for the year B - - 501,233 501,233
Dividends declared and paid FREIR MRS
during the year - - (412,921) (412,921)
At 31 December 2015 R-_T—AhF
+=-BA=+—8 1,051,502 975,582 1,151,051 3,178,135

The Company's contributed surplus arose in 1992 as a result of the
Group's reorganization and represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company's shares allocated under the reorganization scheme
and the then consolidated net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.

ARRR—NN_FEEZBABKRKE
AEEEA  DREEAEFSEE 2R
ARNEEERKENBLARER 2G4
BEFECEENE -

BEBRE-NN—FRAE EETE
AT HABRB DK TRR

Particulars of Subsidiaries 43. MIBLAFFE
Information about subsidiaries is as follows: MEBARZERIT :
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary of equity
registration share capital/  attributable to Principal
Name and business registered capital the Company activities
R,/ BRTEERE A2 R frdh
8 IS 3:. E3TES REE DL TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE G
Acclaim Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$600,000 - 100  Investment holding
HEBRAF ZBERARES 600,000 7T REZK
Chow Sang Sang Bullion Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
Dealers Limited
BAEELHERDA BB 5,000,000 7T REERK
Chow Sang Sang (China) People’s Republic of HK$1,500,000,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery

Company Limited*

BAEE(FR)BEEERAA *

China/Mainland China

hEARANBE
P EI A

1,500,000,000 % 7T

REHE
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43.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

43. KBS (R)

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary of equity
registration share capital/  attributable to Principal
Name and business registered capital the Company activities
L,/ BROTEBRE ADB G
=L B ES: L AR A READ L TEXK
Direct Indirect
HE S
Chow Sang Sang Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Dormant
Commodities Limited
BAELEBmERDF BB 5,000,000 % 7T TEEX
Chow Sang Sang Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Sale of corporate
Corporate Gift Limited gift products
BEECEERBRAA B8 1,000,000 % 7T PERBMIFEE
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of RMB 10,000,000 - 100  Diamond polishing
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China
BAEEER(ER)BRAR* REARLME, 10,000,000 7T AR BRITE
B A3
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of US$10,000,000 - 100 Diamond trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China
FEEEA(LB)BRAR hEARANE, 10,000,000 7T BLEE
B 3t
Chow Sang Sang Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 100 Group financing
BEERBER A BB 15,000,000 57T EEHE
Chow Sang Sang Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Futures broking
BAEEREERAT & 5,000,000/ 7T BB

Chow Sang Sang Holdings (BVI)
Limited

British Virgin Islands

Us$50,000 100

Investment holding

BEEEE(RBERRES) RBERRES 50,000 % 7T REER
BRAT

Chow Sang Sang Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$250 - 100 Investment holding

BEERBERAR EE 25087 REER

Chow Sang Sang Industrial People’s Republic of HK$12,180,000 - 100 Dormant
(Fuzhou) Co., Ltd.*» China/Mainland China

BEEBEEM)BRAF *A hEARAME 12,180,000 7T Emex

B A3

Chow Sang Sang International Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100  Property investment
(Shunde) Limited Mainland China

B EBR(EE)BRAR B,/ BB 2787 MERE

Chow Sang Sang Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100  Investment holding
Investments Limited

BEERERR A B8 2,500,000 /87T REER
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43.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

43,

Issued ordinary

B RFE ()

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/  attributable to Principal
Name and business registered capital the Company activities
R,/ BROTEBRE ADB G
% B ES: L AR A READ L TEXK
Direct Indirect
HE S
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100  Investment holding
(China) Co. Ltd.
BEEKRE ST (RE)FRAA REERTES 13570 AR
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of
(China) Limited marketing services
and
investment holding
BEEEKRE (PER)BRAR BB 1787 RIS E R
RigE R
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited retail of jewellery
BEEKRECTRRAA B 30,000,000 77T KERERTE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$275,307,500 - 100 Manufacture and
(Foshan) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BAEERE (L) BRAR hEARANE 275,307,500 47T RESBERHE
B
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Pte Ltd Singapore SG$2 - 100 Dormant
CpIL 23T Tmex
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of RMB20,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd.** China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
FEEHE(EB)BRAR REEARLME, 20,000,000 T ARE RERERHE
B 3
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$24,400,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Shaanxi) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BAEEKE ST (BRE) hEARANE 24,400,000 570 RERERHE
BRAR* B 3t
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
(Taiwan) Limited Taiwan
BEERBTRGBRAF XBEARES/ 50,000 % 7T KEHE
Chow Sang Sang Manufacturing British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100  Investment holding
International Limited
S EHBEEARAR ERERRES 17T REER
Chow Sang Sang Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Provision of
Nominees Limited nominee services
BAEEREABRAF &L 1,000,000 7T RERIERES
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43.

44,

45,

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

43,

Issued ordinary

B RFEE ()

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/  attributable to Principal
Name and business registered capital the Company activities
R,/ ERTEZERE AN E ]
% BN $:1 ERTEN RER DL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE L3
Chow Sang Sang Property Netherlands Antilles/ US$30,000 - 100  Property investment
Holdings N.V. Hong Kong
G ES RV 30,000 % 7T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100  Property investment
BAELBEEERAA BB 10,000,000 77T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Securities broking
FEEESERAE Ak 10,000,000 /7T B4
Emphasis Jewellery Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Retail of jewellery
Company Limited
HEmABEFRAR 3! 25,0002 7T REZTE
Fullink Developments Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
REER RS 17T Emax
Tsin Chuk Kam Manufactory Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ US$100,000 - 100 Processing of
Mainland China jewellery
TREJERBRAA EEHARES/ 100,000 % 7T KEMT
H B A3
World Commercial Sales Company Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Wholesale of
Limited precious metals
R EITERAF] BB 2,500,000 7T EoBHE
338.Net Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Dormant
B 2B Tmex
@ These companies were registered as wholly-foreign-invested enterprises under the * WEQRDREPEARLRMBEZEM
law of the People’s Republic of China ZEIERERE
A In liquidation A B
# Incorporated during the year # RE R L
Comparative Amounts 44, HELSE
The Group restated certain financial information in the Consolidated AEFEBIGEReRNERTE THHK
Statement of Cash Flows by presenting cash flows of short-term B WFEEEZTZHELR=EA
borrowings with maturity less than three months on a net basis. The ZRBERZ RSN - ZEV R E DM
restatement better reflects the underlying nature of cash flows from R KB REETHES 2 HANLEZ
financing activities of the Group. BEM °
Approval of the Financial Statements 45. BIBmEZ#MZ

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on 22 March 2016.

AUBRER=_ZE—~"F=A=+=H
KEES i RIRETE -
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

As at 31 December 2015

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

FrismEFHE
RZE-—AF+=ZA=+—H

AEERAOIRYEFENAT

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE R E A& EEEE BE HE
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFEAR)
Hong Kong
&8
#1229 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 6357 Rental/own use 31,225* Commercial Medium
AEBIE-—N¥2E /B8R [EES H
* GIF & M/F, 326-328 Castle Peak Road, N.K.I.L. 2507 & Rental/own use 2,790* Commercial Medium
Kowloon 2177
NEBLB=-AE=Z\Sit TEEE i/ A [GES H
" G/F & 1/F, 99-101 Wuhu Street, Hunghom, H.H.ILL 472, Own use 2,345* Commercial Medium
Kowloon 471 & 447 s A
NEAMERENTINZE SR T2 BA [EES H
* Roof, G/F & 1/F, 432 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2266 R.P. Rental/own use 1,788* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon
NERTEAN=_%1T - — LKA /B8R EES H
Flat A, 11/F and Roof, 199 Nam Cheong N.K.I.L. 1230 Rental 551* Residential Medium
Street, Kowloon s ARP. &
EEEHE-NNRTEBABEXRS 5.B.ss.2 g F=E H
2/F, Flats A & B, 3/F, 4/F, 5/F & Flat A, K.I.L. 6642 Rental/own use 10,836* Commercial Medium
6/F, 231 Nathan Road, Kowloon
ERANE =% ZEANBE - /B8R [EES H
miE - RERNEAE
Units A1, A2, A3, A4, A6, A8, A11, A13, N.K.I.L. 3515 s C, Own use 38,440 Industrial Medium
1/F, Unit A6, 2/F, Unit A4, 8/F & Unit A3, D&F
10/F, Block A, 489-491 Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon
EFLEN/ \NEHA—FAR—EAL =fi I% R
A2 A3 A4 A6 A8 AT AI3E -
ZBAE EMERTEAIE
Car Ports No. 7 & 22 on G/F, Car Ports No. K.I.L. 10223 Rental/own use N/A Car park Long
26 & 57 in Basement, Ho On Mansion,
107-109 Austin Road, Kowloon
ENTAE-TtE-SARTRERT kY=l TiEH =Ly =3
BUtRZFTZREMESL TR
A+t
Car Parking Space No. B162 in Basement, R.P. of K.I.L. 4208 Rental N/A Car park Long
Balwin Court, 154-164 Argyle Street,
Kowloon
EnEEH-—AINE—ANREZHEE | NERA Bfi K

B162 SR (L
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

As at 31 December 2015

FrismEFHE
RZE-—AF+=ZA=+—H

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE iR Jic}es BEER BE HH
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(ROFAR)
Hong Kong
N
* GIF-3/F, 691-693 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 2444 s. AR.P.  Rental/own use 9,890* Commercial Medium
& 2444 R.P.
NERHEAN-—EANZRTE=R 8/ 8 GES s
# 85 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, Lot No. 3640 in Own use 3,255 Commercial Medium
New Territories D.D. 120
HRTHATURENTRR2E =i [EES H
# Shop B, G/F, 428-430 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2267 R.P. Own use 1,078* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon & 2268 R.P.
NEATEAN-NZEN=F5t T B4 B [GES i
# Shop B, G/F, 70-78 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po Town Lot Own use 2,089* Commercial Medium
Tai Po, New Territories No. 28
MAXBERELTEL T\ TBE B [EES s
Shop No. 305, G/F, Lok Hin Terrace, Chai Wan Inland Rental 175* Commercial Medium
350 Chai Wan Road, Hong Kong Lot No. 149
ERREE-NTREH AN T=20%H i [EES H
Mainland China
FER
Unit 501, Block 4, Meile Village, Rongshan 100100-047 Own use 1,010 Residential Medium
Community Association, Ronggui Street
Representative Office, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province
BRABLUTIREES EEEREESIL B T s
BREEENIERT %
East of Guangzhu Highway, Licun 154077-014 Rental 123,700 Industrial/ Medium
Management Zone, Licun District, commercial
Lunjiao Town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province
BREAGLUTIREERIEZNEER i I%/B% H
B TR R R
# Unit No. 1-1, Fulihua Mansion, No. 150 134092-003 Own use 1,906 Commercial Long
Qinghui Road, Daliang Town, Shunde
District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province
EREBUTEERAR AERSE—ATH A EES E
EEEAE-FZ—
16/F, Block B, R&F Yingtai Plaza, Section 2, 2310-7-50 Own use 23,686 Commercial Medium
No. 100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
BREBMNTRIRERAEA-TTHR_R 8R [GES )

BENBERESBETAE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

As at 31 December 2015

EER/E a1

RZT—AF+=-A=+—H

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE iR Jic}es BEER BE HH
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(ROFAR)
Mainland China
FEIR it
Car Parking Space Nos. 200 and 201, 2310-7-50 Own use N/A Car park Medium
2nd Basement, R&F Yingtai Plaza,
Section 2, No.100 Huangpu Avenue
West, Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
BREBMNTRIRERAEA-STHR_R B TER B i
ENBEESA_E-_TTR_THE[
Unit Nos. 1601-1602, 16/F, Block B, 10501060004-17 Own use 5,025 Commercial Medium
Vanmetropolis, No.1 Tangyan Road, High-
tech District, Xian City, Shaanxi Province
BRPGE PE 2 T =0 T . B HEE B — 7% A B B R 43 B8R EES H
BEFAE—RE—ZE—RE_E
Car Parking Space No. D010, 1st Basement and  10501060004-17 Own use N/A Car park Medium
Car Parking Space No. F061, 2nd Basement,
Vanmetropolis, No.1 Tangyan Road, High-
tech District, Xian City, Shaanxi Province
PR 70 % 111 =0 27 [ 2B S B — 5% P PR 0 A TEA =12 i
WT—EEEDET—THRBEMLMT
“EEEFREAN—REL
No. 3 Xinxi 4th Road North, Lunjiao Town, 164084-189 Own use 377,726 Industrial Medium
Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province
BRA LT IREE mEEN BN =5 BHA I% i
Taiwan
=) |
Units 1-2, 7/F, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E. 0568-0000 Own use 6,847 Commercial Freehold
Rd., Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan, R.0.C.
FERBESERITEARDZRENR BH EES KAERE
TRt -ECBA
Car Parking Space Nos. 132 and 133 in 0568-0000 Own use N/A Car park Freehold
B5, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E. Rd.,
Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan, R.0.C.
FERBESERITEARDZRENR Sl FiE A ==1iv} KAERE

Tt TAE =R ==%RE

=

Location of branches
DITHES

* Saleable area
AEEHERE
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Financial Calendar

Announcement of 2015 interim results:

2015 interim dividend payment:

Announcement of 2015 annual results:

Closure of register of members for
annual general meeting:

Annual general meeting:

Closure of register of members for
final dividend and special final
dividend:

2015 final dividend and special final
dividend payment:

Share Information

Stock code on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited:

Board lot size:

Bermuda Principal Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building,

69 Pitts Bay Road,

Pembroke HM 08,

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

25 August 2015

23 September 2015

22 March 2016

2 June to 7 June 2016
(both days inclusive)

7 June 2016

14 June to 16 June 2016
(both days inclusive)

23 June 2016

116

1,000 shares

Telephone: +852 2980-1333
Facsimile: +852 2810-8185
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Investor Relations

Corporate Office

27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Telephone: +852 2991-0366
Facsimile: +852 2730-9683
Email: ir@chowsangsang.com

BRERE

g 4=
AR _Z—FF —E-hFNA=-1+HH
HHERAE
BT —FF “E-hFNA=-1+=H
FEARS S
A _E—FF “E—RE=A=-+=H
PEEE
TERERR DB —E-XFXAZHZE
T FE NA+H
(BRRBFAE) : (RIEEEMX)
BRAEFAE : —E—X%FBtH
FERERD B —T-REXNATIA
B FECKRH E2XNATRH
P B K 45 Rl AR HR (PREEEMX)
H&/%\) :
KT —RE —E-RFARAZt+=H
REAPR B KR
REARZ B
RaER

REBBARZER 116
UNCIWA R i

BFEEEN 1,000 %

BRERODBFERAR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building,

69 Pitts Bay Road,

Pembroke HM 08,

Bermuda

BEEROBFERLIE
EEEERARAT
BEREFRBR—N\=%
BRMPLZTZE

B|ah:  +852 2980-1333

BH: +8522810-8185

BHE:  is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

REEBR

TPEERE

BENERDE
KEFNFE -+ iE

T +8522991-0366
fEE:  +852 2730-9683
BEH:  ir@chowsangsang.com
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